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Directors’ Report
EERREE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of cornstarch,
lysine, starch-based sweetener, modified starch and ancillary corn-based
and corn-refined products. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

The Group’s revenue is derived from two business segments, namely (i) upstream
products and (ii) fermented and downstream products, the production activities
of which are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year is set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 16. The Environmental and Sustainability
Report set out on pages 17 to 22 provides a review on the Group’s environmental
policies, compliance by the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group and key relationships with the major
stakeholders to the Group (including its employees, customers and suppliers).
The Risk Review Report set out on pages 23 to 26 provides a comprehensive
review on principle risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

The Group is committed to complying with all environmental policies and other
relevant laws and regulations related to its business operating environment. In
addition, the Group also has an internal laboratory to monitor the quality of our
products perpetually in order to ensure that our products comply with national
standards, including food safety standards.

Continuing Connected Transaction

Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited (“Deneng Golden Corn”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company located in Linging, Shandong, used to
purchase the electricity and steam from Linging Deneng Bio Technology Limited
(the “JV Partner”) for the production and operation of its production plants and
offices in Linging, Shandong.

Prior to 30 June 2017, the JV Partner was not a connected person of the
Company as it only had a 9% equity interest in Deneng Golden Corn and it was
not otherwise an associate of a connected person of the Company.

On 30 June 2017, the JV Partner and Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden Corn
Development Co., Ltd incorporated a new joint venture company, Shouguang
Golden Corn Biotechnology Limited in which the JV Partner had a 45% equity
interest. In this regard, the JV Partner became a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level.
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Deneng Golden Corn and the JV Partner entered into a utilities supply agreement
(the “Agreement”) on 25 December 2016. The term of the Agreement had
commenced from 1 January 2017 until its termination in accordance with its
terms, including, among others, termination by mutual agreement between both
parties. The unit price of electricity and steam was RMB0.4374 per kilowatt-hour
and RMB130 per tonne (tax inclusive), respectively.

The purchase of electricity and steam by Deneng Golden Corn under the
Agreement had ceased since 23 December 2017 upon the cessation of operation
of the JV Partner in the supply of electricity and steam upon the request of
the local government. During the period from 30 June 2017 to 23 December
2017 (represented the period of which the purchase of electricity and steam by
Deneng Golden Corn from the JV Partner constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company), the purchase amount of electricity and steam under
the Agreement was approximately RMB30 million and RMB38 million (net of
value-added tax) respectively.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2017 and confirmed that
the continuing connected transaction was (i) entered into the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, (ii) entered into on normal commercial terms,
and (iii) according to the Agreement governing them on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor, SHINGWING (HK) CPA Limited, of the Company has also reviewed
this continuing connected transaction and confirmed that continuing connected
transaction (i) was approved by the Board, and (ii) had been entered into in
accordance with the Agreement governing the transaction. The said transaction
had ceased at the time when it was approved, confirmed and ratified by
the Board at the relevant Board meeting, therefore, the Company did not
set the annual cap for the continuing connected transaction. Other than the
announcement dated 22 January 2018 in relation to the continuing connected
transaction which should have been announced as soon as possible as that
required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer
to the announcement for further details of the reasons.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected/continuing
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.20
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 8 June 2018. The
proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM”), is expected to be paid on or about 9 July 2018 in cash.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xianggang

Mr. Yu Yingquan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Professor Hua Qiang

Mr. Sun Mingdao

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

By virtue of Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), Mr. Tian Qixiang, Mr. Liu Xianggang and Professor Hua Qiang will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming.
AGM.

None of the above Directors proposed for re-election has entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all of them are independent.

Directors’ Interest in Transaction, Arrangement or Contract of
Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in which a Director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the financial year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, the Directors and other officers of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the Company’s assets from and against
all losses and liabilities which they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duties, excluding any losses and liabilities that may arise from fraud and
dishonesty. The above indemnity provision was in force during the course of the
year and remained in force as of the date of this annual report. In addition, the
Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance for
the purpose of indemnifying for losses in respect of relevant legal actions against
the Directors and other officers of the Company.
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Directors’ And Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

ESRIRITRAEHNER

RIFE—tF+-A=+—H EEREFQAEE
TTHRABRARARLEEMBEEE(EEREE
EPIE T BEHRMEGS ([FSRBEEG D)
SEXVED) R - HERD REST - EEREE
5 MR ERDIE 352 (R AR BN AR B FENE L
MARARE ETRAFTE S LR BT AERETE
#HRX GMIREST R ([RETR ) ARTAE AR
KRR SOARIAT

Name of The Company/ Capacity/ Number and class of Percentage of
Director associated corporation nature of interest securities held shareholding
ESps NG P :) ] 5/ ERtE FEESHARER HRERA
(note 1) (note 3)
( ) (FifzE3)
Mr. Tian Qixiang The Company Interest in a controlled 3,705,385,194 ordinary shares 61.79%
corporation of HK$0.10 each (L) (note 2)
mEFEE /N REnEEER 3,705,385,194 REREE0.10ETT
BEER (L) (M 2)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 131 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 54.58%
REEERRAR BHABA 131 REREE1ETHEER(L)
Mr. Gao Shijun Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 60 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 25.00%
Bt ELE REEEARAR ERABA 60REREE1ETHLBIR(L)
Mr. Yu Yingquan Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 0.42%
FHER%E REEEARAR ERABA 1REREE 1 ZTHERR(L)
Notes: P aE -
1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or (1) FH L] RREENARARINE BN X RH
the relevant associated corporation. HEFR ©
(2) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited ~ (2) ERMAREEEARARER - REEEA

is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Tian is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO.

(3) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,995,892,043 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor their respective associates had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Share Option Scheme

The original share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5 September 2007
expired on 4 September 2017 (the “Expired Share Option Scheme”). Therefore,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) on 19 May 2017.

The major terms of the New Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to attract, recruit and
retain senior management, key employees and human resources that are
valuable or potentially valuable to the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Share Option Scheme are (a) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including any executive director
but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the
Group holds an equity interest; (b) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological support to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.

3N The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the number of issued Shares from time to time. The
total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued Shares as at the
date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme.
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4. The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued

upon the exercise of the options granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued Share for the time being (“Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant must
be separately approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

(5 Any grant of options under the New Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent non-executive
directors of the Company (excluding independent non-executive director
of the Company who or whose associates is the proposed grantee of the
options). In addition, any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the issued Shares at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval of the Company in a general
meeting.

6. The exercise period of the share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme is determined by the directors of the Company, which
period may commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options
is made, but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date
of the offer for the grant of the option or the expiry date of the New Share
Option Scheme, whichever is earlier, subject to the provisions for early
termination as stated in the New Share Option Scheme.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within
28 days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.

8. The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board but
shall not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the Shares.

9. The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 18 May
2027.

As at 31 December 2017, no share option had been granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and the Expired Share Option Scheme of the Company.
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Interests of the Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons FERRREMALTHER

RZZE—tF+-_A=1+—8  BESZHRM - EX
NARIEFE S LB KYIE 336 IEEARTATFEDN
Bt ATALT(BESHARAEZITHR
ABBIN RARR RN S AABER D P EF

WE

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, have an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO:

Number of shares/
underlying shares
BR#%BEERGEE
(note 1)
(BftEE1)

Capacity/nature
of interest

B, HEEtE

Percentage of issued
share capital
HERITRATD
(note 5)

(MizE5)

Name of shareholder
BRREH

Beneficial owner
EnEBA

Merry Boom Group Limited
BEEEERAR

3,705,385,194 (L) 61.79% (note 2)

(Kf=£2)

Benefit owner
EmlEB A
Person having a securities interest

FAEREEDEWAL

Victory Investment China
Group Limited (“VICGL")

292,000,000 (L) 6.52% (note 3, 4)
(M3 - 4)

99,000,000 (L)

Wang Ruiyun Interest in a controlled 391,000,000 (L) 6.52% (note 3)
TiwE corporation (VICGL) (BzE3)
EEGLEEE R (VICGL)
Notes: Bt

“4)

The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares of the Company.

These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited
is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang, an executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held
by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO as disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” above.

In accordance with the corporate and individual substantial shareholder notices of
VICGL and Wang Ruiyun filed on 17 August 2010, they are interested in 145,000,000
underlying shares through the holding of certain unlisted cash-settled equity
derivatives, and VICGL is wholly owned by Wang Ruiyun. Wang Ruiyun is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by VICGL under the SFO.

In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notice of VICGL filed
on 17 August 2010, VICGL holds a long position in 99,000,000 shares jointly with
another corporate shareholder named “Goldstone Fund Ltd”.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,995,892,043 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, there were no any other
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO.
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(3) REBVICGLEEHRER —ZE-—TFNA+TL
ARZAEERBEARBRREBN  REEBR
BETHLTREHEERETETRAMHESR
145,000,000 B AHRB B 0 #E %5+ VICGL Jh i £ i
E2EHA - REEFRHAEGHI - THERE
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Directors’ Report
EFERSE

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the New Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
which enables the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company'’s total issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Qixiang
Chairman
Shouguang, The People’s Republic of China

26 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERETHRA N

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND COMPANY DEVELOPMENT

The average cost of corn in 2017 was lower than that of 2016 and the market
demand for various products rebounded accordingly. The sales volume of
products recorded general growth, thus increasing the revenue of the Group
significantly. In general, the Group achieved record highs in terms of production
capacity and market competitiveness. According to the analysis on the market
performance as a whole, prices of bulk raw materials, such as corn, bottomed
out and the entire domestic economic situation began improving. As a result,
the management is relatively optimistic about the business performance in
2018. However, unfavourable factors, including more stringent environmental
requirements, increase in raw material prices of corn, increase in costs of power
and steam as a result of increase in coal price will exert heavier burdens on the
industry. Moreover, the recovery of production capacity of the corn processing
industry will also lead to more intense market competition in the coming year.
In order to enhance our competitiveness, the Group will further reduce costs by
saving energy and reducing material consumption.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5 July 2017, Shandong
Shouguang Juneng Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, established a joint venture, Shouguang
Golden Corn Biotechnology Limited (“Golden Corn Biotech”), with Linging
Deneng Bio Technology Limited. The construction of the production base
of Golden Corn Biotech will commence in 2018 and the production base is
expected to commence operation by the end of 2019. If the plan progresses
as scheduled, certain facilities will be completed by the end of 2018, and
testing and adjustment of various equipment will commence then. In addition
to continuing to engage in the production and sales of cornstarch and lysine,
Golden Corn Biotech will also engage in the development of other new varieties
of amino acid products. This is in line with the Group’s strategy of long-term
development in the corn-refinery market. The project investment will be financed
by internal funds of the Group and the capital expenditure is estimated to be not
more than RMB 1 billion.

The Company is going to take upcoming challenges in a steady and pragmatic
manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE & wm M AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The following chart shows the contribution of (i) upstream products and (ii)
fermented and downstream products to the Group’s revenue in the past two
years:

67.7%

FEBOE

TE®ER() ERER k(i) BEBRTRERER
EMBEFEHAEERANER :

69.0%
Upstream products FEM
2016
Fermented and R R TR
downstream products
2017

Upstream Products

Upstream products represent cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products,
which have a variety of application potentials depending on our customers’
industry sectors.

During the year under review, the market demand for corn starch remained
strong. However, the performance of ancillary corn-refined products was affected
by the low prices of raw materials, such as corn kernel, soybean oil and soybean
meal, and the performance of this business segment was impaired by the sales
performance of certain by-products.

Fermented and Downstream Products

Fermented and downstream products consist of lysine, starch-based sweetener,
modified starch, and other fermented products derived from cornstarch.

During the year under review, this business segment recorded satisfactory
performance in terms of sales. Against the backdrop of the recovery demand
of the feed industry, the demand for lysine maintained at a relatively high level
and the export market was stable also. Currently, the supply and demand of the
domestic market of starch-based sweetener is relatively balanced. In respect of
modified starch, the selling price dropped along with the decline in corn prices.
As a result, domestic and international markets significantly regain their interest
in modified starch produced in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R M AT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Overview

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately RMB4,695 million (2016: RMB4,398 million). Gross profit of the
Group increased significantly by 24.6% to approximately RMB620 million (2016:
RMB497 million).

Profit after taxation increased significantly to RMB394 million (2016: RMB219
million). Basic earnings per share of the Company was RMB0.0647 per share
based on the weight average number of 5,995,892,000 ordinary shares (2016:
RMBO0.0356 per share based on the weight average number of 5,995,892,000
ordinary shares).

Segment Performance

Upstream products

Revenue WA
Gross profit EF
Gross profit margin FE R =

BBRR
BE

REBEFE AEEHBLEKAHNAR
#4,695,000,000L( = T — SR F AR ¥
4,398,000,0007T) ° ANEREEFI KR LT 24.6%
ZEH AR 620,000,000 (ZF—RF (AR
497,000,000 7T) °

R 5 18 ) 7 K18 _E A= A R % 394,000,000 7T (=
T—RF ARM®219,000,0007T) B & InHEF
9% £05,995,892,000 R EBRETE - ARRINE
BREARFASBRARE0.0647 TL(ZT—KF ¢
4% DN S 9 A% £ 5,995,892,000 % & i@ A 5+ E A
BRARKE0.03567T) °

DERE
L Em
2017 2016
—E—+t& —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
3,177,310 3,032,633
254,970 222,034
8.0% 7.3%

Revenue of upstream products increased mildly by 4.8% to RMB3,177,310,000
(2016: RMB3,032,633,000). The gross profit margin of this business segment
increased by 0.7 percentage point to 8.0%. During the year under review, sales
volume of cornstarch increased to approximately 1,141,913 tonnes (2016:
1,079,456 tonnes) while the average selling price of cornstarch decreased to
RMB1,868 (2016: RMB1,903) per tonne.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE R M AT

Fermented and downstream products

BER T YEm

2017 2016
—Z—+F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBETTT

Revenue A
- Lysine - Bk 941,098 850,250
— Starch-based sweetener — B E 271,853 265,399
- Modified starch - BRI 275,627 224,679
- Others - Ht 28,653 24,883
Total FEEy 1,517,231 1,365,211
Gross profit EH 364,573 275,061
Gross profit margin EFIES 24.0% 20.1%

Revenue of fermented and downstream products for the year increased
significantly by 11.1%. As consistent with last year, lysine products was the major
revenue contributor to this business segment. The overall selling prices of this
business segment were higher than that of previous year.

During the year under review, demand of lysine from both domestic and overseas
markets were increasing. The average selling price of lysine products increased
to RMB5,977 (2016: RMB5,653) per tonne. The sales volume for the year under
review was 157,456 tonnes (2016: 150,414 tonnes).

Starch-based sweetener performance was relatively stable for the year under
review. Revenue of starch-based sweetener was approximately RMB271,853,000
(2016: RMB265,399,000). The average selling price of starch-based sweetener
was about RMB1,956 (2016: RMB1,939) per tonne.

Revenue of modified starch increased substantially by 22.7% to RMB275,627,000
(2016: RMB224,679,000). The export of modified starch provided major
momentum to an increase in sales for the year under review. Export sales of
modified starch represented about 27.3% (2016: 19.8%) of total modified starch
sales.

Other fermented and downstream products sales represented new generation
and environmental-friendly products. The production scale and the size of
domestic market were comparatively smaller than other businesses of the
Group. Revenue of these product was approximately RMB28,653,000 (2016:
RMB24,883,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R M AT

Cost of sales

The major cost components mainly consisted of corn kernel and utilities
expenses, which represented about 80.8% and 7.8% (2016: 82.2% and 7.5%)
of total cost of sales respectively. The average corn kernel price in 2017 was
approximately RMB1,490 (2016: RMB1,540) per tonne. In general, the material
cost and utilities expenses per output unit were not materially fluctuated over the
year.

The Group did not enter into any new forward/futures contract to hedge the price
fluctuation of corn kernel during the year review. The Group makes purchases
from the spot market in accordance with its production schedule.

Review of Other Operations
Other gains and losses

The net amount of other gains and losses increased substantially to
approximately RMB105,868,000 from RMB12,558,000. The increase was mainly
attributable to (i) the receipt of government subsidy of approximately RMB97
million for the losses incurred during the relocation of Shouguang production site
and (ii) the amortisation of government subsidy of approximately RMB13 million
for acquisition of new production facilities in Shouguang new production site.
These favourable factors was offset by the loss on disposal of certain property,
plants and equipment of approximately RMB11 million for the year under review.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 2,133 (2016: 2,163) full time staff. Total
staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately
RMB167 million (2016: RMB159 million). The Group considers the experience,
responsibility, and performance of the Directors and employees of the Group in
order to determine their respective remuneration packages.

On 19 May 2017, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Share Option Scheme”) to replace the previous share option scheme which
expired on 4 September 2017 (the “Expired Share Option Scheme”). The purpose
of both New Share Option Scheme and Expired Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to attract, recruit
and retain senior management, key employees and human resources that are
valuable or potentially valuable to the Group.

In addition, a remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2017, no share options have been granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and the Expired Share Option Scheme.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and investment
on uncommitted funds. The primary purpose of our financial management and
treasury policy is to ensure possessing sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitment on one hand and to obtain better return on the
other hand. Any unused fund is not only placed on short-term/fixed deposits with
authorised financial insitutions in Hong Kong and/or the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), but also short-term capital-and-reward guaranteed financial
instruments.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Directors do not consider the exposure to foreign exchange risk being
significant to the Group’s operation as the Group operated mainly in the PRC
and most of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities were denominated
in Renminbi. Foreign currencies were however received from export sales. Such
proceeds were subject to foreign exchange risk before converting into Renminbi.
The foreign currencies received from export sales were converted into Renminbi
upon receipt from overseas customers. The Group manages foreign exchange
risk by monitoring the exchange rates closely instead of entering into any foreign
exchange hedging arrangement.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The key financial performance indicators, including gearing ratio, of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and its comparative figures are set out on
page 101.

The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group
is sufficient for its present requirements. The Group’s borrowing, cash and cash
equivalents were mostly denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2017, the
borrowing was approximately RMB4,432,000 (2016: RMB4,432,000) and interest-
free. In addition, most of the borrowing was with a maturity within one year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2017, bills payables were secured by bank acceptance bills
and bank deposits of RMB2,000,000 and RMB 3,000,000 respectively. As at 31

December 2017, the Group did not pledge any leasehold land and building to
secure banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R M AT

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounted to approximately RMB141,384,000. The amount of
distributable reserves included the Company’s share premium of approximately
RMB98,084,000, which may be distributed provided that the Company would
remain solvent after the distribution of dividend.
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Environmental and Sustainability Report

R LA FRERRERRS

Basis of preparation

The preparation of this report was conducted mainly with reference to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. We aimed to provide a balanced and comprehensive review
on mainly the environment and social performance of different areas in our
Group with our major stakeholders in this report. We used priority issue analysis
to identify and focus the primary needs and issues faced by our stakeholder
groups.

This report covered the overall environmental and social performance of all
major subsidiaries of the Group which are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements during the year ended 31 December 2017.

What we believe

Cornstarch is one of the most versatile, renewable and easily workable
resources which also has a wide range of application in various industries.
From the clothing we wear to the food and beverage served in the restaurant,
cornstarch is one of the most commonly used components of tens of thousands
of manufactured products nowadays. Thus, we maintain a positive view on our
business in the long run because of the following reasons:

1. The cornstarch consumption per capita in China is far less than those
in the developed countries in the world, which represents a massive
potential for market growth and promising prospects for manufacturers of
cornstarch and related products.

2. The application of cornstarch is a blue ocean because the potential
application of cornstarch is still being developed by scientists.

o8 We are located in a major corn-belt and are close to customers.
4. Cornstarch has low substitutability and are non-reusable.

With our strong platform, we are positioned to capture the benefits of an
increasing market share and are well prepared for further sustainable growth.
Even though we are facing the current tough global environment, our objective
remains unchanged, which is to be in a leading position in the corn-refinery
industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). To achieve this goal,
the Directors and the Board’s executive management teams are engaged in
expanding our Group in various aspects, including our production capacity of
cornstarch and lysine products, our product pipeline, our marketing force and
our market coverage. The Company is also committed to enhancing our research
and development capability.
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Environmental and Sustainability Report
BRENAREERRE

Outcome

ER

Become a market leader in the corn | e Cost control
refinery industry in China PR
BAFE IR NI ENTSEEE e Strengthen the balance sheet
B ER BRI
e Research and development
T R R E

Create value to our shareholders
RREAIEEE

Major Stakeholders to the Group

The Group’s sustainability is highly dependent on the relationship with its
stakeholders. Besides creating value to shareholders of the Company, we also
create value to our stakeholders beyond monetary terms. We are committed
to balancing financial performance with how we do business, how we treat our
people, how we live the values in our business relationships and how we care
for the environment which we rely on. We have six major stakeholder groups
which can participate in or affect our decision-making process and influence our
business outcomes.

A. Employee

We recognise that the health and safety of our people come first as they
are key to our long-term success. This is core to us and to every aspect of
our business. We believe the achievement of positive workplace relations
is mutually beneficial to the Group and our employees as workplace
efficiency is achieved when labour relationships allow for a culture of
continuous improvement and acceptance of change. Thus, we encourage
communication at all levels. Apart from regular meetings with the
representative of the Group’s labour union, we also obtain opinions from
and provide feedbacks within our workgroups in order to ensure continual
improvement for the work environment and other staff-related matters. To
understand, manage and, where possible, minimise occupational injuries
or illnesses in our business is equally important. We have appropriate
controls in place and provide our people with appropriate training. On-
the-job trainings related to individual development are also provided to
our people to enhance skills and capabilities for discharging duties at
work.
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RENMAFEERRS

We, through the Safety and Supervision Department, had provided the
following major training events and topics to our employees during the
year:

o REMRFATSRERBEHRIATE
EEJIEARTE :

Major training event/activity

Fire prevention and fire drill
Hazardous chemical leaking drill
Safety laws and regulations
Occupational disease prevention training
Body check provided for selected staff with

high occupational disease risk
Liguid flammable chemical rescue exercise
Electrician, welder and boiler worker safety training
Flood control emergency exercise
Update and change of hazard identification and warning cards
Code of practice on using forklift truck and loader
Prevention of dust explosion

TEFIER SED
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At the same time, we strive to cultivate sustainable employment practices
and labour standards by strictly complying with the PRC Labour Law,
the PRC Labour Contract Law and other applicable PRC employment
regulations throughout our production processes, and by promoting
fair and equal treatment in all areas of human resources, including
recruitment and promotion, compensation and dismissal, working hours,
diversity, rest periods, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
We prohibit the employment and use of child and forced labour in any
of our operations. We believe that the Group can uphold human rights,
prevention of child labour and forced labour by strictly complying with the
above laws and regulations and internal policy.

In adherence with high standards of business ethics and anti-bribery
policies, all employees (including Directors) are required to abide by our
ethics policy. Our employees are prohibited from conducting themselves
in any way which involves any illegal behaviours by taking advantage
or abusing their positions, including but not limited to bribery, fraud
and illegally obtaining or accepting benefits from others. In addition,
a whistleblowing policy has been implemented to provide a secured
reporting channel for employees and stakeholders including, among
others, customers and suppliers to report any suspected misconduct or
malpractice involving the Group.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group regarding, among others, employment and labour
practices, safety and health, preventing child and forced labour and
anti-corruption and no legal proceedings or cases regarding corrupt
practices had been instituted by or brought against the Group and/or its
employees.
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Suppliers

We have developed trust with our suppliers. We, as a leading cornstarch
manufacturer, play an important role in the procurement of corn kernel
in Shouguang and Linging districts, which are located in Shandong
province. Our suppliers mainly consist of farmers, cooperatives, agents
and traders. We provide our corn kernel offer price to our suppliers by
using mobile technology. While our procurement is carried out on a 24/7
basis, we propose corn kernel offer prices to our suppliers through mobile
technology to increase efficiency. We believe that our suppliers will
deliver the best corn kernel to us at their first priority because our offer
prices are transparent and we show commitment to purchase at our initial
offer prices. We also adopt a tender policy and procedure for choosing
service providers and subcontractors in a fair and transparent manner.

Customers

Product safety is a great issue as we produce base raw materials for our
customers. Our products can be reproduced for animal feeds or other
products for human intake. The maintenance of high product quality is the
only key to customers’ loyalty. Our quality assurance programme ensures
that our product standards can be identified precisely in accordance
with the Chinese national standards issued by The Standardization
Administration of the PRC. In addition, we also work closely with our
customers to develop our order book and provide the required products
at the right time.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group regarding, health and safety, marketing and
labelling. Also, there were no product recalls, legal proceedings or cases
regarding product responsibility had been instituted by or brought against
the Group.

Governments

One of our major stakeholders is government authorities. The Group
shows its commitment to improve production efficiency by using
modernised production facilities and deploying resources in the
development of production knowhow. The payback of these investments
would not be within a short time. To ensure that the development direction
is on the right way with long-term government support, we maintain good
working relationship with the municipal governments. In addition, we
have worked closely with local governments, other government bureaus,
such as Environmental Protection Bureau and Tax Bureau. We expect that
our continuous commitments and support to the government authorities
would assist them in better understanding and responding to our industry
needs.
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Shareholders

One of the major stakeholders of the Company is our shareholders. We
share our business objective with and create value to our shareholders.
Our long term corporate strategy is to maximise total shareholder return.
The Board undertakes the management responsibility on behalf of our
shareholders. During our decision-making process, we strive to strike a
balance among various factors, including without limitation maintaining a
healthy balance sheet, choosing sustainable development projects, and
determining the optimal financial requirements of the Group.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring the availability of
balanced and understandable information and each of the shareholders
are treated equally. We encourage shareholders and potential investors
read the Company’s corporate communication policy, which is available
at the Company’s website.

Environment

Environmental Policies

The Group understands that our business has an impact on the
environment and we recognise the importance of sound environmental
management practices and sustainable business operations. We are
committed to meeting all environmental standards and policies as set by
government.

Throughout the year under review, there were no material incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group. Our environmental strategy
is to achieve a balance between cost of production on one hand, and
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and sewage disposal on the other
hand. Our business is both energy and water intensive, the Group has its
own facilities to reduce GHG emissions and treat sewage before disposal
to city sewage network. A perpetual monitoring system on sewage
disposal is reported to local environmental protection bureau and open
to public inspection. In order to protect our environment and reduce the
cost of production, we use methane generated from sewage treatment to
produce steam for internal use.

During the year under review, the Group did not produce any hazardous
waste in our production plants. In addition, most of our non-hazardous
wastes are collected and sold to third parties for other uses.
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Use of Resources

Other than corn kernel, electricity and water are the other two major
costs amongst the costs of production. The electricity we used is mainly
generated from coal in Shandong province. Although the Group does
not have any option to choose the source for the production of energy,
we spend much effort to improve production efficiency and, in return, we
can reduce the GHG intensity indirectly. For example, the management
team reviews the energy consumption rate and sets a new target at the
beginning of every financial year. Water is a vital resource for our planet.
It is used to grow crops, feed animals and people, generate electricity
and steam, and produce our products. We extract underground water
during the production and use our own reclaimed water treatment
facilities to minimise over-reliance of using underground water and its
impact to the environment. We are committed to using water responsibly.

Other Stakeholder to the Group — Community

We endeavour to contribute to activities which can benefit the community and
create positive values to the society through our business and operation. We
also encourage our employees to actively participate in community investment
activities.

Key Performance Summary

The environmental and workplace related performance data are set out in Key
Performance Indicators on pages 101 to 102. The management endeavours to
present a complete and meaningful information to the user of such data, however,
we cannot assure the accuracy or completeness of data in which we collected.
The accuracy of the data we produced in this report may be affected by, inter
alia, unit conversion factors, material/quality tolerance, and difference in material
used and method of production. Therefore, we accept no liability for the accuracy
of the information if users of such data suffer any losses or damage.
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Risk Review Report
| e 25 B o

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and ~ EF &Y REEE R EHE RN AREE KGR EREE
internal control systems. These systems are monitored by the Board through  Eff - WEBZZEE - BEIFRAIBEZBOGH
the assistance of the Audit Committee, Corporate Strategy and Development — B) TEEEZFRA

Department and Internal Audit Department.

Risk management and internal control systems are not one-off arrangements; EREERANBEZEZGLIF—RNBNLH - 18
instead they are integrated into our daily business operations and decision- X ZFERAEHMEEBRFEELRKBEN
making process. The objective of upholding a high standard of risk management ~— — 7 < #3F =/ KERRER K AR EEN B 62
and internal control is to guarantee the sustainability of the Group’s development.  REAFEAIFAIERE o

Managing risks EEE R

The management uses risk scorecard to rank and compare each identified risk ~ BEEHRAER D Y AEEMEANEIRDH
and its related impact posing to the Group. Through this analysis process, all SRR R EEEZEETIRRLER - HBEEAD
identified risks are presented to the Board in an effective and comprehensible ~ #Ti@%2 - MBS BAINRBEABULHNIER L
manner. FAMEEEER -

The executive management team is assigned with the responsibility for managing — #fTE 2 EEKE R & & B 2R R & E R E &
risks and monitoring the implementation of risk mitigation policies. In addition, — BEREBITEMR © tbsh - S PNETERBFRITH
the team heads are required to pledge themselves to ensure appropriate control  EUEFERERAN F B C GIFT A EMERERR
procedures are in place within their respective teams to the Chief Executive

Officer once a year.

Major activities in 2017 TE-LFENEEED

The Board held one meeting to discuss the risks and mitigation tools for the EFERBE_T—tF+_A=t+-HILEFER
year ended 31 December 2017. As consistent with last year, the following works T —R&&alwm AR REFERRN TE - EHEXFHE

and tasks related to enhancing our control standards and assessing risks were ~ —H ' R=ZE—tFE MK FIIERFEIRKT K

completed in 2017: SHERBRA BN TIERER

o Reviewed the internal audit reports (presenting independent appraisals  ® EHAFFZRE (Bh2FEHAEERRE
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and EBRABEZERREE BB R AL
internal control systems) B AT )

o Reviewed the production safety reports (presenting reviews on safety and ~ ® EREELZERE(ETE2INEREBEE
risk levels of the Group’s production methods, operating procedures as FE s HERFUARTEMERBELS
well as workplace and occupational health conditions) R R 2 R BB K T 2 26)

o Reviewed the risk assessment of the operation of the Group J EHAEEN S ERRTE

. Discussed with the management on the risk control measurements o EREIRE A AR B IR b

o Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk ® EHAEERREBRSGEERARAR

management system

o Carried out different large-scale factory drills, such as product recall  ® ETTROARKIRES - WE@RE D
drill, fire drill, prevention of dust explosion review, safety review on use of EHE - ANERE - EEEBRS - FRAE
corrosive chemicals, and emergency escape drill M 2R RN RESRERE

In 2017, we also engaged an independent consultancy company to provide —ZT—t% @ BMFREBEERRRRE TEHR

occupational health and safety seminar to our staff. BERERET M o
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B\ fn BB E

Principle risks analysis

Principle risk and uncertainty identification are part of our risk management
system. The following analysis shows the major risks and uncertainties that are
considered material and may adversely affect the business and financial position

of the Group.

TERBED T

BRI ERR M THEEEZZRMRRER RGN
Hep—af7 o LT AMEINHARSEARAGEEA
SENEBEMBRAEETHZENTERR K
THEERE -

Major risks
TERB

Mitigation plans
B = R AT &

Domestic market risk

Our businesses are dependent on the prosperity of Chinese
market. During the year under review, certain business
performances are gradually recovered and such risk is
relieved.

B AT 45 m R

HPOEBEBERPETISNER - REBEFE  ETEBRRES
R1E - BRARRSE &R -

e Maintain a strong balance sheet

e Maintain sufficient banking facilities

e Strengthen the credit control of customers

e Allocate more resources on the development of overseas
market

e HARRHEMNEERER

s WRFTHMORITEER

o MERUBEFHEEER

o PNEEZERMAIEEINTS

Production risk

Production schedule may be affected by working safety
review and environmental review.

We have no compromise on staff safety. Failure to follow safety
laws, regulations and standards may result in workplace
accidents involving injury or fatality. During the year under
review, we spend much effort to ensure that safety controls
are in place.

In order to the fulfil regional gas pollutant benchmark set by
the local government, factories in the region may be required
to limit it production output temporarily. The frequency of such
requirement may increase in the future.

LEAR
AEH BT TN TIER 2 BERREREHTE -

BMERTR2FELETRS - MARBTR A - ROIRD
- M EERTIRER AT - ERBT  REEEE - RN

NERZZBRL 2R

RTHEERBTRENLEERESREMER  ZHEATRATEE
BWERERREIER o HEZE RO RBIERKAEZIEM -

e Safety Supervision Department to oversee all safety issues
of the Group

e Corporate Strategy and Development Department to
monitor control procedures in place regularly

e Perform various safety exercises and safety drills regularly

e Maintain high level of gas emission standard during our

production
s LENERAKEMBELESH
o DENTEHERELHEERMELERET
s TFHETEBRLR2EBHRETDZEE
o REERRIFEEFEENREBIIUKT
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Major risks
FEREBE

Mitigation plans
a8

Product safety risk

Our product may not achieve our customer’s required level
of quality or national standard. Poor quality or sub-standard
product could have negative impact on our brand image and
reputation.

EmRZER

BMNERAREEEREPMERNEE KT HERIEE - LHK
TERENERAAESHRMANREVREEEEXRARTE -

e Undertake strict quality control and product testing

e Carry out periodic product recall drill to improve the
handling process of product recalls shall they arise, hence
minimising the potential negative impact of any sub-
standard product on the Group

o ETERNEEEFRERAH

o THHMTERAREE URZERBRMNEERRF -
A NEEEERIEHAERERNEETERERKE

Wi

Commodity price risk

Corn kernel and cornstarch are commodities and their prices
are volatile and unpredictable.

AmERERE
FORML R F KR A &

- BRTTREHIRIRE) - BT AR -

e Monitor corn kernel and cornstarch prices on daily basis
e Strengthen the control on the use of futures contract

o BHEZEIRNREKRKBRHER

o INERHEAEES LG

Regulatory risk

It is a trend that environmental protection-related rules and
regulations will be more stringent year by year. Government’s
policy may change without prior signals. Evolving standards,
rules and regulations could result in increased costs,
regulatory actions, or in extreme cases, litigation or plant
closure.

SER AR

@mﬁ%*ﬁ@%ﬁ%&ﬁM—im FBIE - YK BB

RAEZESKNIER T HE - 22 - RAIRBEOITEEHE -
@ﬁﬁ&$iﬂﬂ%ﬁwﬁﬁ@ EWﬁEETETE@gﬁﬁﬂ&
BRI °

IEﬁz W

e Regular monitoring and review of changes in laws and
regulations

e Act as a representative of industry group and participate
in the government policy/regulation-making stage

o EHERERBEDECI KR PINE D

o EETEARANRER  EBREERPIRGIERERN A

Expansion failure risk

The Group may not execute a new product project as planned.
Business combination, acquisition or formation of joint venture
may not achieve the expected outcome as planned.

BERREAR

AEBARVERFEETHERRR - EBAH - WBAKNLALD
ET A REEREUS TERACR -

e Market research and feasibility study on potential new
product

e Due diligence work on potential acquisition target

e Engage legal advisors to advise on any key proposed
investment actions

o HBIEREMEITTISAE RAITTIEMR

o HEEWEASETRRIE

o ZEZAEMMEMNEERZRETHRHE

-
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In respect of the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board considered the
internal control system is effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
that might affect the Group were identified.

It should be acknowledged that our risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report
PEERRSE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company ARRER(EFDE(EFE])FARIFTHK
understands maintaining high corporate governance standard is crucial to  FREERUARARRKKERERNINERE - &
success in the future. The Board and its dedicated executive management FEHEFNHRITERER —EHBRAARRKR
teams always demonstrate its commitment in upholding sound internal control KAz AR RN L #55 R AF RO M EBEHIRAE - B
standard, accountability and integrity to the shareholders and stakeholders of the &1 M E FIEEHGE -

Company.

Corporate Governance Practices TEERESR

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the ~ BREAHEHELE(EFEEF) ARAMELEE M E
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the HRE-ZT—tFRFEFRE ([ —F—LFRRE
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong A& 4N ARFRIERNEEFEETEEH AR
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review and has applied the  ZMBRAFEZ LRI (T AR HE+m
principles as laid down with the aim of achieving a high level of governance,  PTEMREEASTRI(TREE AT ]) B0 E A
except that Mr. Tian Qixiang (the chairman of the Board) did not attend the  SFRHEX - WEAEFTHNRANERSKF R

2017 annual general meeting (the “2017 AGM”) because of his other business  &JA °
engagement.
Directors’ Securities Transactions ESENRERS

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing Code”) ARAEHMEBTHNBESFEETA(EET
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions — 8I1) » EA&FHA L EHARAIM 8+ Pr#t ey £ 1T
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The AZEFETESFRXSNRETRIRRZ - EETRIE
Dealing Code applies to all Directors and to all employees who are informed that ~ FIRPIBEE RAAEEMEETZTARENE
they are subject to its provisions. The Company has made specific enquiry of all & ° ARARIEAEEERELAESH  28BEF

Directors and that all the Directors confirmed their compliance with the required ~— HEREF RN E R BEFE — B8 T E & TRIPTH A

standard set out in the Dealing Code throughout the year under review. RTIRAE o
The Board Exg

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company (the EFSEBZERIEFHIARRRARBMR(TER])
“Shareholders”) for its leadership and control and is collectively responsible for ~ B& @ WHRABEESI REEARBRFEBELAR
promoting the Company’ long-term success and businesses by directing and AR RIEEED - EFE BATAUBNTE
supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board is currently composed of four FR=FBIIFNTESMENK - ESSMAEXEY
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. All members — ZEEFHERMNEELEOTERZEEE - KK
of the Board are subject to the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties ~ REERFEMAFTE AR R RBREEN RN T
in upholding their accountability to the Shareholders and in making decisions  FAEHIRE °

objectively in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, being the governing body of the Company, had led the management EZE®{FAAAANEERALE - CREEFESR

in performing the following duties during the year under review: ERERETMIBE ¢

o Formulating long-term and short-term strategic and business plans . GIEE=3:ISESEE N E T |

. Approving the Group’s annual forecasts o AR KB B F ETER

o Evaluating the business performance of the Group U FHEAREBE XGRS

o Ensuring the integrity of financial information o R B ER B TR

o Evaluating the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk  ® ST A S B P9 B3P 1l S R B B EE R AT AK
management systems %

o Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s corporate governance policies and  ® B RERANEECEECBERER -
practices and ensuring their implementation in accordance with the CG LA R BERAR IR (R 3 B8 <P RIFAT
Code

o Ensuring the Group’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements J BRAEBEEPEEREEER
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rERERHE

To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain functions
to various Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each of these Board committees
operates under their respective written terms of reference on terms no less
exacting than the code provisions. Suggestions and conclusions of the Board
committees will be reported to the Board in its subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational responsibilities
to the executive management team under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer. The Chief Executive Officer, working with the executive management
team, is responsible for the operations and business development of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position of the
Chairman, primarily responsible for the strategic positioning. Mr. Gao Shijun
serves as the Chief Executive Officer, primarily responsible for the operations and
business development of the Group.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular, between Mr.
Tian Qixiang (Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer). The
biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile”.

Company Secretary

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group. He also serves as the secretary of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and other board
committees as organised by the Board from time to time. Mr. Leung is responsible
for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer
on governance matters, for example, to ensure Board procedures and applicable
laws and regulations are followed.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountant. Mr. Leung is
also a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung took no less than 15 hours professional
training to update his skills and knowledge.
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2017 Board and Committee Meeting Attendance and Training —ZE—tSEEZEEZRZESE2N
Record H FE B 15 Bl fe %

During the year under review, the Board held four regular meetings and one  REEFE  EFRTOEHRSHE L KM
other additional meeting. The regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in I &% - EFeRE —FrEEHEESTSHN
advance to facilitate maximum attendance by Directors. Other additional Board — HfEi&k  #UREBRSEEMNHEX - MBFE -
meetings are convened as and when required. NEERAtESZESE -

Our Directors recognised the importance of participating in continuous EFfSTF2EHBEZXER ((HEEXHER]ER
professional development (the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge — MEMABMERENER - KA <EREEER
and skill, which can help them keep abreast of current trends and issues facing  BZRAEEPAEHERNME @ WHREEE TR
the Group and ensure better fulfilment of their duties as directors of the Company.  T{EARRRIEENRE -

The attendance record of the Directors at Board meetings, Board committee SEFNREEFENEES SR EFLE9g
meetings and the 2017 AGM, together with the type of training received by each ~ #&R -ZT— Lt FBRBFRG L FELHE - AP

of the Directors during the year under review are as follows: XHIFIERINT -
Board Meetings Board Committee Meetings
Bzl EZezEeeE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Type of CPD
Regular Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee 2017 AGM received
st
“E-tE BESERRE
ERZES REZEE RREEAE EHl
Executive Directors: BIES
Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) MEREE(2E) 444 1N NATER i i X AB
Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) B E %4 (77H#7) 404 M NATEER  NATEE  NATER v/ AB
Mr. Liu Xianggang BIRRI%E 444 1 NATER  NATER  NATER X AB
Mr. Yu Yingquan FREEE 444 1n NATER  NATER  NATER / AB
Independent non-executive Directors:  BYEHTEE .
Professor Hua Qiang TERHE 404 1 303 11n 1n X AB
Mr. Sun Mingdao ks 44 1 33 101 10 X AB
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERAE 4/4 il 33 11 il / AB
A Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/forums/workshops/conferences relating to A HERE RS MR EEEENEERE
directors’ duties or other relevant topics Milg WG HE IS ERF
B Reading materials, such as newspapers, journals, business updates and regulatory B MERER  CERERESTBREEBOME -
updates relating to business, economy or directors’ duties MBE - BT EHEBEARSHEEENSE
Board Diversity EEgzntt

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company  AEBAFERMYENEE  ARRGESESER
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting  B&EZ It B IFEIER S0 B IZ R &R A5 E %
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. EMNBEITLE ERTESSKEMEESE @ SRIE
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered AR RBHMEHNAEBESSRKE ZTLBUR -
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, ®ZEFEEEEESZ Lt BREETERRIE
race, educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and Bl - F# - Xt - Bk - BEH S EELH &
independence under the Group’s Board Diversity Policy as published on the g M#BRBLE - EESMELZTHUB AL
Company’s website. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and  ARA| T EXHERESSKE ZT/LAER -
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for  AFEBEHFEEEAR -

the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Director’s Appointments, Re-election and Removal

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles.
Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the Company as
soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his independence and
must provide an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards, using and applying consistently suitable accounting
policies and making reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates. The
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on its ability to
continue as going concern.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board
meetings. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
responsible for explaining the latest business development and financial
projections to the Directors.

During the year, the fee payable to the external auditor of the Group, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”), and its affiliated firms comprise service
charges for the following:

Audit service EIZIRTS
Review of interim results EHPHZEE
Tax representative service BBRE
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Change of External Auditor in 2016

Because PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) and the Company could not reach an
agreement on the audit fee for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, PwC
resigned as the external auditor of the Company in October 2016. SHINEWING
was then appointed as the external auditor of the Company to fill the casual
vacancy of the office. SHINEWING was re-appointed as the external auditor in
the 2017 AGM. Save as disclosed above, there were no other change in the
external auditor in the preceding three years.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Each company and industry is associated with specific inevitable risks. We
cannot avoid them, but we adopt the best and responsible approach to manage
and overcome them. Our risk management and internal control systems have
been in place for many years, which provide the assurance of operation
efficiency, work safety and safeguarding of assets. The Board undertakes the
responsibility for monitoring the business risks and formulating plans and risk
management policies to mitigate potential risks and uncertainties that materially
affect the business of the Group. The Board is also responsible for evaluating the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The management team is delegated by the Board to identify, manage and
mitigate material risks that might adversely affect our business. Once the
management team considers any newly-identified risk to be material, it will
report such risk to the Board for assessment and consideration of implementing
a corresponding mitigation plan where appropriate. However, it is possible that
certain risks remain undetected or unidentified and risks currently identified as
immaterial may eventually turn out to be material to our Group. In view of the
inevitable nature of certain risks associated with our business and industry, our
risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate unavoidable risks of failure to achieve the Group’s business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The following diagram shows the risk management hierarchy of the Group, which
provides information on our processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks:

The Board

By

* Monitoring business risks
EEREB AR

e Formulating plans and risk management policies
HIEFT & R R R E R IR

e Evaluating effectiveness of risk controls and mitigation tools
R R B ) N AT 48 T A SRR

e Oversee and ensure the conduct of reviews on the Group’s

risk management and internal control systems at least annually
ERNERFFEVHREERNRRER RABEERAET —REY

Audit committee

EREEY

e Reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually
BEELEHASENRARE R RN EBETE RFHIT —IRERH

e Ensure the Group’s management has performed its duty in implementing
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
HREAEEEEERITENTAEERBRERE RANPEERRNEE

e Considering major findings on risk management and internal control matters
ZREBERLNIPELEHOEAEER

Operational departments

BB

e I|dentifying different risks and uncertainties in each operating cycle
51518 L =R i e A R O BB N NEARAE &

e Reporting identified risks and significant adverse business factors
REDHPIRAR REBRATFEBEE

e Implementing risk controls and mitigation policies determined by the Board
BITHESSETNRMREE MEFRBEK

Operational departments

The function of operational management includes, inter alia, the identification
of potential risks and the implementation of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including risk controls and mitigation policies, as
determined by the Board in the course of daily operations.

The Group has built in the risk management culture from top to bottom. At
departmental level, the Group has prescribed, for each operational department,
our risk management principles, control procedures and code of conducts
in order to promote stronger understanding of stewardship responsibilities,
delegation of duties, and accountability for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. At staff level, the Group has laid down the business
ethics policy, whistleblowing policy and inside information escalation policy to
ensure that sufficient controls are in place to guide our employees’ behaviours
through, and ensure timely and decisive responses to, potential and emerging
crises. To enforce our people’s individual risk management capabilities and
minimise any gap between the Board’s risk vision and management’s actions,
risk-related objectives are also integrated into employees’ annual performance
goals and appraisal process.
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The Group emphasises production safety and product safety in every aspect of AKERZESTAIELELE2NERLE
our operations. Safety always comes first. W RS L2 WA EL ©

The production safety function is carried out by the Safety Supervision AEZEMTIFMAEELZER ([ZEEH]) BT
Department (the “SSD”) of the Group. The major functions of SSD includes, LEIMHNEIZTIERE (HhEE)ERRREEX
inter alia, the promotion of risk management culture, compliance and regulatory ~ {b ~ SEFFARREERE - ZEATEMETUE
standards. It also carries out periodical drills on whole-factory scale, such as fire ~ BERURAEE - EIEE - BEED RS
drill, prevention of dust explosion review, safety review on working at height and ~ ®Z={FXRERBERIECERN T 2R - E M5t
use of corrosive chemicals, regular staff examination on safety issues, etc. TEEHHBTEITIZS

The product safety function is carried by the Corporate Strategy and EmZTZHTEREEIR([REIE]) T - HEH
Development Department (the “CSDD”). It carried out product recall drills  #EfTERBEIESE © W5 - LEIFEIIHENAIFIEE
periodically. In addition, CSDD also assists our department heads to develop R &#FIEFHEREF -

control procedures in their respective departments.

The management believes that periodic drills provide our employees with  EREHREEHEE RESREIRES - ARA
opportunities to train and test their reaction under different critical situations. RABEHFETRBZERLTHRE - Z5 - BB TRE
In addition, it also allows the Group to evaluate the effectiveness of each of our ~ AEEFEEIRTAAEL - AR E R E 2R AEE
codes of conduct and, risk management and internal control procedures. R PRI

Internal audit is an important component of corporate risk management. The  NEHFHALERAREENEEITE - REIEA T
internal audit function is performed by the Group’s Internal Audit Department (the — {ERIZARSEE MR ERESHED ([ ABEIET B ) ET - A

“IAD”"). The major responsibilities of IAD are as follows: HETHNEZRENOT ¢

(i) To carry out independent review on business activities; (i) HEBTBETELER

(ii) To analyse any potential control, operational, compliance and financial (i) AEMBEER &8 - AR RIS
impact on weaknesses; TR

(i) Toreport findings on any weakness areas; and (i)  ERPTERMETMESIH 0 R

(iv)  To suggest improvement and remedy procedures. (iv)  BRERERFERIEF RO -

Relationship of Audit Committee and the Board under risk ERZEERESEEAREEELTHNE

management framework 3

The Audit Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review the adequacy %Vé/\ SRREAEEFEHASBRNIELER

and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems ke ﬁ%iﬁﬁz?’m—Ez’]&ﬁxﬁliﬁﬁxd\*u\%&ﬁ 9

at least annually. Periodical review reports and presentations from management mf@F%mﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé/\ EREBENIEER

are provided to the Audit Committee in relation to internal control and risk REBFENRMBERZ® - FABRERE &T

management matters. These reports and presentations allow the Audit Committee ~ EEZZE B & 7 ¥l A AP L2 K R 2 B 12 R AT AX

to assess the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems. 2 ° i ERAREAMEZELRBREERAFES

Whenever a weakness of the Group’s internal control and risk management & BZZESRAREESSRERESHEELL

systems is identified, the Audit Committee is responsible for discussing its M HFERBEOHBIEFF - AREREEFEIL
potential financial impacts and the corresponding remedy procedures with the — B\ERTAZERNEEMER LENEANFEIZR
Board and the management. The Group had not been aware of any material ~ <333% °

internal control failings or weaknesses affecting its overall operation during the

year under review.

A Risk Review Report set out on pages 23 to 26 summarised our works ERFEHBEHNFE23E26 8 - #i7|ENEEEF

conducted and the evaluation of risks associated with the Group during the year ~ ERFTETTH TIER S EAREEGRIM AL EHD
under review. aTfH ©
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Inside information

An inside information escalation policy is in place and sets out the principles and
internal control procedures for guiding our Directors and relevant employees on
the handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and in
adherence to the relevant laws and regulations. The policy is subject to review
by the Board from time to time in view of, among others, relevant legal and
regulatory updates.

Audit Committee

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, financial controls, internal control and risk
management system of the Group and to provide recommendations and advice
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor
as well as their terms of appointment.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue
Kwai Wa, Ken. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee performed the following
duties:

o Reviewed the Group’s annual report and interim report

o Discussed the audit issues with the external auditor

o Reviewed the annual internal audit plan

o Made recommendation of the appointment of external auditor

o Assessed the independence of external auditor

o Reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports and risk management

findings with our management

Remuneration Committee

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors.

Our remuneration policy prohibited our Directors from determining his or her
own remuneration. Each Director’'s remuneration package has been considered
and/or reviewed periodically with respect to his or her individual performance,
responsibilities, financial performance of the Group, market practice and other
applicable factors.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa,
Ken and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the annual
remuneration package of both executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors for financial year 2017. The Board, with the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee, resolved to increase the annual remuneration
of executive Directors for the financial year 2017. Details of the remuneration of
each Directors are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors should remain unchanged for the financial year 2018.

None of Director participated in any discussion about his own remuneration in the
meetings regarding the review of remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure and
composition of the Board, to implement and review the Board Diversity Policy,
to review and provide recommendations to the Shareholders on the terms of
Director’s service contract, and to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa,
Ken and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee performed the following
duties:

REBEERN  FEZReCERNRTES EY
FATEER T LFHBFENFEHMAE
B -EEREFHZBENHERT  BREFANT
EER T LFUBEENFENS - BRESF

BB S F BN A H B IRRMEE3T -

WITESERBIFRTESRN 2 \FUREE

BB TR -

RENFMnesE Lt HEEF2E0REF0F

B o

REZES

REAZEENIETEREHNESTENRERA
K BT RIRNEFEERBZLCBR - FHES
BR7G & KR GRR B Bt L RV B SR A H FE R A~ AR

AHEBILIFMITE R B -

BRl - REZEEXNBEEHEERBIIFNTES
(BNFERHE - FRELEERRFERLE)  UEA
RAEFAESFELE - RELRRELZEGIRE -

REBEE  R2ZBGCET MIRE -

o Assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors o SHEE N IEITE RO BT

. Made recommendations on the re-election of retiring Directors to the — ® HREERRTEZMESSELHERES
Board

. Reviewed the background and suitability of a proposed independent non- ~ ® EHREBLIFNTESNERERRE
executive Director picifed

. Evaluated the structure and composition of the Board J ST E E G AR

. Reviewed the Company’s Board Diversity Policy J BARRAEETGHE ZT/LBR

o Reviewed the term of reference of the Nomination Committee J B REEZESNHIESE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—+&%% 35




Corporate Governance Report

N AL A s/
TEERME

Shareholders

The Company welcomes enquires from Shareholders. The Board will review
Shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Company’s office at Suite 3312, Tower
1, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or by email
(ir@chinastarch.com.hk).

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, via its website at www.tricoris.com, or by email to
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com, or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in
person at its public counter at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

A Shareholder's Communication Policy was adopted by the Board in order to
promote effective communications between Shareholders and the Company.
This policy is available on our website. The Company recognises the importance
of Shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose Shareholders’ information without
their consent, unless required by law.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company can convene an extraordinary general meeting by depositing
the requisition in writing to the Company. The procedures for Shareholder(s)
to convene and present proposals at general meetings, including proposing a
person for election as a Director, are available on our website.

Constitutional Documents

The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional document during
the year under review.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

SEFhEREEAB”G

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 54, is the chairman of the Board and a member of each
of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr.
Tian is principally responsible for the Group’s strategic positioning. He is also
responsible for formulating the Group’s business development objectives and
ensuring that such objectives are implemented by the Board accordingly. Mr.
Tian has been appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of Shandong
Shouguang Juneng Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd. (“Golden Corn”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, since 1 June 2015 where he
had also served as chairman during the periods from July 2003 to October 2005
and from August 2006 to July 2012 respectively. Mr. Tian has been appointed
as a director of Shouguang Golden Corn Biotechnology Limited (“Golden Corn
Biotech”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on 26 June
2017.

Mr. Tian completed his study of Electricity and Water Irrigation from Water and
Electricity Machinery School in 1981 and graduated from The Shandong Province
Party Committee School of the People’s Republic of China with a diploma in
Economics Management in 1996. Mr. Tian obtained the qualification as a senior
economist in December 2002.

Mr. Tian is also a director of Merry Boom Group Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 50, is the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Gao
is principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s operations and business
management. Mr. Gao joined Golden Corn in August 1998, and was later
appointed as the deputy manager of Golden Corn in January 2000. Mr. Gao has
been a director of Golden Corn since July 2003 and its general manager since
May 2005. Mr. Gao has been appointed as a director of Golden Corn Biotech
on 26 June 2017. Mr. Gao is also a director of Linging Deneng Golden Corn
Bio Limited (“Deneng Golden Corn”) and Shouguang Golden Far East Modified
Starch Co., Ltd respectively.

Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate degree in Physics in 1989 and a Master of
Business Administration degree in 2012 from Shandong University. He was also
awarded the qualification of senior engineer in 2010. Mr. Gao was appointed as
the permanent vice-president of China Starch Industry Association with a term
from June 2016 to May 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 49, joined Golden Corn as a factory supervisor in
1998 and has been a director of Golden Corn since October 2005. Mr. Liu has
been appointed as a director of Golden Corn Biotech on 26 June 2017. Mr.
Liu was director of Deneng Golden Corn for the period from March 2008 to
March 2017 and served as its general manager from March 2008 to December
2012 respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s production technology
developments and cornstarch production.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Industrial University (subsequently
amalgamated into Shandong University in 2000) in 1990 with an undergraduate
degree in Industrial Management, and obtained a postgraduate diploma in
Industrial Economics from the Economics School of Shandong University in 2003.
Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from Shandong
University in 2012. Mr. Liu obtained the qualification as senior engineer in 2002.
Mr. Liu is the deputy supervisor of the Cornstarch Professionals Committee of
China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 49, is principally responsible for the overall management
in investment and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Yu first joined the Group
as a director of Golden Corn during the period from July 2003 to October 2005,
and was re-appointed as director in March 2007. Mr. Yu has been appointed as a
director of Golden Corn Biotech on 26 June 2017.

Mr. Yu graduated from Shandong Hydro Institute in 1990 with a diploma in
Hydro Economic and Financial Management, and obtained a diploma in Finance
Management from Shandong Economics Management Institute in 1998. Mr. Yu
obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional of the People’'s Republic of
China issued by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in 1997.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Hua Qiang, aged 46, has been appointed as independent non-
executive Director on 17 May 2016. Professor Hua has been a professor of the
School of Biotechnology and the State Key Laboratory of Bioreactor Engineering
of the East China University of Science and Technology since 2008. He obtained
a bachelor and a master degree in chemical engineering (major in biochemical
engineering) from the Zhejiang University in 1993 and 1996 respectively. He also
obtained a doctoral degree in information engineering from the Kyushu Institute
of Technology (Japan) in 2000. He was appointed as an assistant professor of
Institute for Advanced Biosciences of the Keio University (Japan) from 2001
to 2004, and was appointed as a postdoctoral scholar of the Department of
Bioengineering of the University of California, San Diego from 2004 to 2007. He
had also been a medical research scientist for Sanford Burnham Prebys Medical
Discovery Institute (formerly known as “Burnham Institute for Medical Research”)
(the United State of America) from 2007 to 2008.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
ESNEREEABGHN

Mr. Sun Mingdao, aged 69, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Sun also serves as a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Board. Mr. Sun was appointed as the Eighth Session’s
permanent deputy chief secretary of China Starch Industry Association for a term
from June 2016 to May 2021. Mr. Sun was appointed as a deputy supervisor of
the Expert Committee of China Starch Industry Association in November 2015. Mr.
Sun was also appointed as a vice director of the Technical Committee on Food-
grade Starch and Starch Derivatives under the Standardization Administration of
the People’s Republic of China in November 2015.

Mr. Sun had been a deputy director of the research centre and a vice general
manager of Wuhan Huali Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007.
Mr. Sun had served as a standing committee member, and the Sixth and Seventh
Sessions’ chief secretary of China Starch Industry Association respectively.

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 52, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue also serves as the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Board.

Mr. Yue has served the following various positions with Roma Group Limited
(“Roma”) in 2017.

Positions held in Roma 2017

Chairman 20 April to 2 June

Chief Executive Officer 20 April to 5 June

Chief Executive Officer 1 October and onwards
Chairman 18 December and onwards

For avoidance of doubt, Mr. Yue is currently served as an executive director, the
chairman, the chief executive officer, the company secretary and the compliance
officer of Roma.

He is also an independent non-executive director of Major Holdings Limited
(“Major”) and Manfield Chemical Holdings Limited (“Manfield”).

The shares of Roma, Major and Manfield are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with solid experience in accounting,
auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Yue is also a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Colorado State Society of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also holding a specialist certificate and a
practicing certificate in corporate finance of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Senior Management
All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of the business

and operation of the Group. These executive Directors are regarded as the
member of the senior management team of the Group.
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Auditor's Report
A LGRS

EN
Shi newinﬁ

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited 15 7% "Il (75 1)
43/F., Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

FIA

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
45 to 99, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on page 59.

M BERREBEHMGE

F2RE P BMERM 14 R FEEOB M EFTHER -

The key audit matter
BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
B EEERESENSE

We have identified the valuation of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and because
applying the Group’s accounting policies in this area involves
a significant degree of judgement by the management in
assessing whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting
period which may affect the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is approximately
RMB1,131,849,000.

ERM¥  BERRENHEHRSUBERANEEN - mEH
rERER ESEMNSHTEERN BEEFEENAYE K
BEZERBEMREESHEMAIESEYE  BERRERE
BEXNTZENBRETREELERAE - BRMEEERERH
BREFEEH R_T—LFTA=1T—0 "% KBELZE
MEEEENAARK1,131,849,0007T °

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate the
management’s assessment of the indicators of impairment
and, where such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing and identify any valuation
risk of property, plant and equipment.

BB EF IR FF BRI R E 12 E BURE I R B 1E B =T
e REBREAAPROERT - FHAEEREAEDRAI -
ARGERIYE% - BB RRBEEAEERR

We have discussed with the management on the key
assumptions used in the management’s assessment of the
indicators of impairment. We have also performed check on
sample basis by physically inspecting whether the property,
plant and equipment are kept in a good condition.
BHMERERENREREBENARETREMEANEER
o BEETHMEEDE  BELARBETEMRE - UBRREKRS
EBBRRRIFAR

Recoverability of trade receivables

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on page 62.

BZBRRRNTRERE

F2RE M BRERM 18R FE62H MR -

The key audit matter
MRt IR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEiT M REBRMEANIE

We have identified the valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the allowance for doubtful debts
involves significant degree of management judgement.
HARERESLEBEELEASHE  RMNERTE FRKHK
WA GRRRETEE -

As at 31 December 2017, in the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately RMB125,716,000. The
management takes into account the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Therefore, it comes to our concern that there is a risk of
recoverability of trade receivables arising from management
estimation.

RIB—+F+-A=+—H EZRURNEBENSARK
125,716,000t - EE ML ET - EREEZEMA AKRRER
RREREFNXRBRNIE - Bt - HPNERREE BN
EENE S RYGRATK EIIRE R -

Our audit procedures were designed to review management’s
assessment of the indicators of impairment and challenge
the reasonableness of the methods and assumptions used to
estimate the allowance for doubtful debts.
BMBARERFHORGA AR EREHRETROME - WEH
BT RERBERPIEAN T ERBROA BRI E5E -

We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment with
the management and, where such indicators were identified,
assessing the management’s impairment testing. We have
evaluated the assumptions and critical judgement used by the
management by assessing the reliability of the management'’s
past estimates and taking into account the ageing at year
end and cash received after year end, as well as the recent
creditworthiness of each debtor.

HMEREEE MR RERAENTR - WERRLIERA BT
K WEREMMELORERETE - HMEBEBTEE
BB REPMEMET R I SRR B 12 B AT A A RER R E R H
EHRFTE » WEZBFRRNRER  ARRFREMBIOER
T URBEBATHNESE -
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of
the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Kwan Chi Fung.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwan Chi Fung

Practising Certificate Number: P06614

Hong Kong
26 March 2018
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Consolida ed Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

18 m N H AR S W am &

For the year ended 31 Deoember 2017 BE-T— ‘\:i‘f'fﬂ =t+t—ALtFE

i

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREFIT
Revenue L'ON 5 4,694,541 4,397,844
Cost of sales HERK AR (4,074,998) (3,900,749)
Gross profit EX 619,543 497,095
Distribution expenses DIEHEMA (96,664) (101,132)
Administrative expenses THREA (132,294) (115,865)
Other gains and losses H s &g 1E 6 105,868 12,558
Operating profit REFIH 496,453 292,656
Finance income ELEZIL PN 7 32,424 24,851
Finance expenses & 2R 8 (290) (1,862)
Profit before income tax M FT1S B A F)DE 9 528,587 315,645
Income tax expenses FRiS#isz i 10 (134,526) (96,426)
Profit and total comprehensive income TEEFER
for the year meWEBEE 394,061 219,219
Attributable to: LATR & IR e -
Owners of the Company KAREEB A 388,167 213,682
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR SR M 2 5,894 5V58
394,061 219,219
Earnings per share attributable to owners R TEAAEEEREF
of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) SR E AR #E2 ) (ARE) 12 0.0647 0.0356
The notes on pages 51 to 99 are an integral part of these consolidated financial %51 % BMIFE T A OrRI IS R E R E 5 o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BB ER

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - BB K% 14 1,131,849 1,230,397
Prepaid lease payments FERNEER 15 205,587 210,474
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEEYE - BERZHENRIE S
plant and equipment 21,759 -
Other asset Hih&E 16 - 20,830
Deferred tax assets FRER IR E B 22 48,527 7,369
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 1,407,722 1,469,070
Current assets REBEE
Inventories w8 17 224,532 213,885
Trade and other receivables H 5 & H AR 18 409,692 336,545
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZNSREE
profit or loss 19 - 19
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIF X 20 3,000 1,063
Fixed deposits TE BATF 3K 20 390,000 390,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 20 1,103,160 493,810
Total current assets MEEELE 2,130,384 1,435,322
Total assets BEMRE 3,538,106 2,904,392
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Bt R

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

2017
—E—tF

RMB’000
AR®TT

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AREETIT

EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of AAREEAEGES
the Company

Share capital f& A 21 532,656 532,656

Other reserves H b 423,560 419,205

Retained earnings IREB & F 1,659,287 1,314,815
2,615,503 2,266,676

Non-controlling interests AR AR R i 131,520 35,626

Total equity xmE 2,747,023 2,302,302

LIABILITIES afE

Non-current liabilities FREBEE

Borrowing & 23 224 1,110

Deferred income PEFEU A 24 220,183 33,543

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 22 9,838 1,000

Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHEE 230,245 35,653

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMPERR 25 444,560 496,239

Income tax payable FERTFRSHE 88,302 40,601

Borrowing (B 23 4,208 3,322

Employee housing deposits BIFERES 26 23,768 26,275

Total current liabilities BB EEEE 560,838 566,437

Total liabilities EEH8E 791,083 602,090

Total equity and liabilities EnkaEes 3,538,106 2,904,392

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2018. EFEN T N\F=ZA- A BHERKET

% o
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HE# FRR
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 51 to 99 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Fias BB

Fortheyearended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREEAEL

Non-
Share Share  Special  Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Total interests equity

FER
k& BROEE KRG EARGE  iERE  REERA s RREE ERAG
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note (i) (note ()]

(W= (i)
At 1 January 2016 T F-f-H 532,656 137,424 27,080 56,196 175,059 1124579 2,052,994 30,089 2,083,083
Profit and total comprehensive  AEEFEREGANEEE
income for the year - - - - - 213682 213,682 5537 219,219
Transfer o statutory reserves  EAETE Rl - - - - 23446 (23,446) = = =

At 31 December 2016 and RZE-"F

1 January 2017 +ZA=+-Bk
—2—t5-A-H 532,656 137,424 27,080 56,196 198,505 1,314,815 2,266,676 35,626 2,302,302
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEHEREA NG A
income for the year - - - - - 388,167 388,167 5,894 394,061
Contribution from non-controlling  FFEk#ERTE
interests - - - - - - - 90,000 90,000

2016 final dividend ZE-NERERE - (39,340) - - - - (39,340 - (39,340

Transfer to statutory reserves B ALl - - - - 43695  (43,695) - - -

At 31 December 2017 “F—+tF+ZA=+-H 532,656 98,084 27,080 56,196 242,200 1,659,287 2,615,503 131,520 2,747,023

Notes: B & -

(i) Under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the share premium of the Company (i) RIEFEREARVE  EEABEZAMARN
is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to IRSGRR T » AR R B AR 19 4 18 AT M AR 3R 9 ik
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that PRS- MRBEREDIKRE - AARESR
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its RENERE N BB EBP R HNER -
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Special reserve represents (a) the difference between the nominal value of the (ii) BRI () AR BIFMTEITIRAMEERRHD
share capital and share premium issued by the Company and the aggregate of the i {2 {81 6 7N £ () 25 48 15 FT A B O B B8 1 B RO AR AR
share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired upon the Group’s RO EEREZBNER RO EERBEA
reorganisation; and (b) the difference between the consideration paid by the direct Ak P B2 P B 1 B 2 2B s ] A AN S A A X (B B R
subsidiary for the entire registered capital of the indirect subsidiary and the amount BEMBARMNEMERZBHERE -

of registered capital of the indirect subsidiary.

The notes on pages 51 to 99 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 851 Z 99 AMKTETA I HRERNEFR S -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IR IMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—Z

—tF+-A=Zt—HLFEE

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT

Operating Activities REES
Profit before income tax B P45 350 B A1 528,587 315,645
Adjustments for: KFARELATIRE -
Finance income A& WA (32,424) (24,851)
Finance expenses RMEER 290 1,862
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REETE

plant and equipment 150,903 140,813
Losses on disposals of property, HEME - BER

plant and equipment Ryl pd Ei} 6 11,191 1,354
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AT E R E S 4,887 5,580
Amortisation of government grants B T 435 B B0 2 85 6 (13,484) (1,889)
Change in fair value of financial assets at ~ EAFEFABZN

fair value through profit or loss CRIEENATEES 19 226
Operating cash flows before movements EEESHREE 2N

in working capital KERERE 649,969 438,740
Increase in inventories FEE N (10,647) (10,934)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 REMEWRTR (L) R

and other receivables (73,147) 41,906
(Decrease)/increase in trade B S REMBEMSTKCRLD) /&

and other payables (12,815) 36,641
Cash generated from operations KEEENRS 553,360 506,353
Income taxes paid BRI (119,145) (38,111)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4% & EEE LIS F58 434,215 468,242
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HBItFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT

Investing Activities REZEH
Government grant received BT Bh 200,124 =
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BBE¥% - HE L& (132,395) (141,880)
Additions of prepaid lease payment SEEREiEN= il - (366)
Decrease in other assets HEtEERD 20,830 =
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - HEREEMER

plant and equipment 5,719 4,897
Interest received BUF B 32,424 24,851
(Increase)/decrease of pledged bank BRI (3G m)

deposits (1,937) 36,853
Increase in fixed deposits TE BAfF R38N - (100,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEBES, (FH) MRS FE

investing activities 124,765 (175,645)
Financing Activities MEEH
Capital contribution by non-controlling IiER R A

interests 90,000 -
Interest paid BEATFLE (290) (1,862)
Repayments of borrowing EEER - (165,000)
Proceeds from borrowing & RATIS I8 - 70,000
Dividends paid BEAARE (39,340) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEHES, (FA) MRS FE

financing activities 50,370 (96,862)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R& NIRE&ZEYILINFE 609,350 195,735
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHRERBRESEED 493,810 298,075

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ —A=+—HHRE K&
NEEB 20 1,103,160 493,810

The notes on pages 51 to 99 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ %512 99 BMME & I ISREME BRI D -
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE S R B R

1 General information 1 —REHR
China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in FEBRHIERAERAF(AAR AR
the Cayman lIslands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law as ZERET+-—AZThERBEREHSA
an exempted company with limited liability on 29 November 2006. Its AEERERS MK INERRERA
ultimate holding company is Merry Boom Group Limited, a company Al EBKRERAFRIGEEEAR AT
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The address of its (—HREBEBARES ((AEER A
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are SNFEMKL 2 AR) - ARElFMHE
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual report. BREELEMIBOMINFRIAFE
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, B —EiR R o  AARIREWE AR (5
the “Group”) are the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch- BIAEEDNFEEBRBERFEEE
based sweetener, modified starch and its related products. KB - BBEEE - RO - FIERH RE

AR °

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock RARNBAEERXHABER A E ([HAZ

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Frl) ERABE— Lt o

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi REEFAEIN - WEE OB REERE T A

(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. ARE ([ AREE])EHE -

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FTESTHEME

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these RELSEHMBRRMERANEESS

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have Blﬁ%dﬂ T - REBHAEIN  ZFHK

been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise RERFTBEZRIFEERER -

stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation 21 mEEE
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been RRFHE KM BHREERES
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial BetmAg(( BRI
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute gERNAEERBTAMER
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition, the HEA (BB BREER ] R
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures o o AHMBRRBER
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the RrESH EMRBRESR ARG
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. PIRERNERARBEER - RIRD
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under FEGF ARG SR EE (KT
the historical cost convention except for the financial assets at fair 2.10) 50 - ABBI BRI AE L
value through profit or loss (note 2.10). PRAREAEREL o
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS REFEBBHBHREEREK
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also W BHBRFEERSE THRREN
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process gttt c EREEERAEE
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving B BERBREPIETERLH
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where T o W RS IR E H B SE
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated B &6 (2 sk a0 R 2R I A 5 & OF B
financial statements are disclosed in note 4. BHRE T = BEARNEHERMET4

B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR SRR B R

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FESHEEBRE (&)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 @mREEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B HRREEZEE
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) RE B TR FTAT RAZ
EETERY
The following new amendments to standards have been AT AREBR AR G
adopted by the Group for the first time for the current EEREHOFELE
financial year: HIE
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRUBRE  BRUBREEN
2014-2016 Cycle: Amendments to A ) @*Mi
HKFRS 12 eSSl
ZERME:
BREBRE
EAIF 1252
)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative BREEN  BEHE
1%
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred EheHEN  HAREREERT
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 0526 BRMEAE
The adoption of these new and amended standards does PRAN %S S A e 7T XER)
not have any significant impact to the results and financial B BB R
position of the Group. R BT EATE -
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) IE] R IRAR B FT2E R 2 52 FE
The following new amendments to standards and NTRR-_ZE-—NE—A
interpretations, which may be relevant to the Group, are — B EERRNE T E
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after fi1 o4 HIl BR A4 1 AT A B R 5
1 January 2018: BB BNERFET RZ
[
HKFRS 9 (2014)  Financial Instruments' BANBREEY 2RIA
£9%
(Z2-mf)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ ERNBREEN RaRPAY
£15% LN
HKFRS 16 Leases? EApBRLEY BE
Z16%
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRUBRS  BEEE
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle' A ) R0
ZZ-PER
ZZEEE
LEESE!
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRUBRS  BEUE
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle? tbd 5] R
“2-nER
3588
ZERE?
Amendment to Classification and Measurement BAUBREEN NRHAREN
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment Transactions' 2B HRANDE
ﬂ“‘;w
HK(IFRIC) Foreign Currency Transactions and BE (ARG MERHREN
Interpretation 22 Advance Consideration’ BERBZE  RE'
£)REZNH
HK (IFRIC) Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments? EE(EREE  MEREER
Interpretation 23 REREZEE) THEL
REENR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bt R MR

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESHHEBRE @)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B EKERBEEZZE(F)
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) H R IR BIFTZER R 22 FE

(Continued)
! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

B Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

The Group anticipates that, except as decribed below, the
application of other new amendments to standards and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED FE

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014) will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments, Recognition and measurement”. HKFRS 9
(2014) is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9(2014) introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets, a new expected credit loss model that
replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in HKAS
39, and a new hedge accounting model which represents
a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will enable
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in their financial statements. The Group has assessed
that its financial assets currently measured at amortised
cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014).
Therefore, the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have
material impact on the classification, measurement
and amounts (after impairment review) of the financial
assets as reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The Group plans to use the exemption from restating
comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at
1 January 2018, if any.

BB ARAT

2

TERETHRBE @
21 HRREEE)
211 B HERFEEZEHE(E)
(b) 14 R IR B TR K 2 FE
(%)
BERMBHEENEIR

(Z2—mF)ES/MTA

BBV B REENF IR
(ZZ—OF) HRRIRR
SR T ANSTEE
ERIB B G EREI
WISRMT A BR&T
2] BEEMBHREER
BOR(ZT—WF) N =
T N\F—A—Hzz%
sz FEHMER - &
BB mEREAE I (=
Z-NF)SIASHEE
DERFEZHBRE 2
HeTEHERERES
AR BB GERE
VRAERANEEEE
BREER A RIFEY
REFHER - KIE SR
SRR FEBEEAN
HTE R SRR P R EE
REDES) - NEBEF
T RERRE B B RS
HAE IS (=T —m4F)
f&  HIRE B LA SHAK
RRIRATFEF ABerat
ENSRMEEND B RE
ERERIFTE - Bt - &
MBEBUBHRELRE
H(ZZ—WF)Brey
REE S BB B REAFT
RENSRMEENDE -
AFERSE(RELRE
BHER)BERVE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B I R M AT

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESTBEBE @)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B EKERBEEZZE(F)
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) IR ERANBI TR R 72 FE
(Continued) (#)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers EAMBHRELERES
HIEFAEHWE]
HKFRS 15 will replace HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS BEMBREEAFES
11 “Construction contracts” and related interpretations. 5 A LR E B | 5t 22 R
HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning E18H Al REBE
on or after 1 January 2018. Based on the assessment PEBFIRIERE
completed to date, the Group does not expect HKFRS ] REERE - BB
15 to have material impact on our future consolidated BMEERFEISHER =
financial statements apart from additional disclosure T-NF—A—H%2#%
required on the revenue transactions. The Group’s revenue Fth 2 FEHMAERR - 1R
recognition policy as disclosed in note 2.21 is consistent BHEARB TR
with HKFRS 15, Certain key areas prescribed in HKFRS it REEBRHREER
15, such as identification the performance obligations in WA X 5 1E H # oM B8
the contract, timing of revenue recognition, significant N BEVEREEASE
financing component and sales with a right of return, do 155 N EHRRHE G
not materially affect how the group recognises revenue BRI EREATE -
and cost of sales. I & B A W AR BUR
(RHM 221 B 5B ) &2

BEMBEHRSEE15
H—H - BAEMBRE
HERIEAERPIET HHE
TEEHE(WHH AL
MR EE - R R
Al EARETERKTE
BRENEE) TEHAE
12 i R 8 5 ik AR Y
HAEEEEATE -

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect REE GBI AT B
transition method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and will SR EERFE 155 6 A
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as an R REBBEE - WHR
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January —E-N\F—-A BN
2018, if any. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group plans @ AR A5 BR A S B R FE R
to apply the new requirements only to contracts that are WEFTERRRAR
not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group expects (IAG) - RMB B IR
that the transition adjustment to be made upon the initial ERRANFE 15T R F
application of HKFRS 15 will not be material. AEBEGFEEHR =T

—NFE—-A—BZAHK
TERH A HDRBERE °
REERPEREREE
B 75 38 &5 B R 5 165 5 B
A B R R B Y N E
Ik
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED FE

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, HK(IFRIC)
— Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease”, HK(SIC) - Int 15 “Operating Leases — Incentives”
and HK(SIC) — Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”.

HKFRS 16 is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The Group will early apply
HKFRS 16 for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. The new standard requires a lessee to
recognise almost all leases on the statement of financial
position which will reflect their “right-of-use” for a period of
time and their associated liability for payments. The new
standard will gross up the statement of financial position
and change the presentation of statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income and statement of
cash flows. For example, rental expense will be replaced
by depreciation and interest expense in the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income. As a
practical expedient, the leassee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases and to leases of
low value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect
of initially applying HKFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018, if any.
After the initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise about RMB1,052,000 for both the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability. In addition, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases (note 27(a)) of approximately RMB145,000 are
short-term leases and of low value.

BRI IERBRA

2

TERETHRBE @
21 HRREEE)
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(b) 14 R IR B TR K 2 FE
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B I R M AT

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESTBEBE @)
2.2  Subsidiaries 22 MEAEA
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The BB A B AR 5 B ¥ B 17 A 1
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has OB  WASBEARERE
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity BT 2 A B HE R R
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over N RNEAERAERZER
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which NAFEBEBEIRE - EHER
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from e 1 i #E o BB 2 B 50 45 il i
the date that control ceases. EBREREEA BRSO AR
W EHIELR IE B EIRR T B A& O
ABR ©
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on EEARAIMRS - GHEER
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised ARRIRRZFHRER KT T
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported HiE - RERNBRTIHHE - 10
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s ETRE MBRAZHMNEEE
accounting policies. KAETRE  NEAEENER
B -
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income 8D R R B R E A AR S W
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and KANSEHHBERARTEEA
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of RN - BIfE g 23k
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the EREREEELM  WERAN
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling FEWm@ERARAEE AR
interests having a deficit balance. FEPRARRE R B -
2.3 Separate financial statements 23 BIYPHHRE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less BT B A B 8917 & 1R B AR HIBR R
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. B - KABERENEEK
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on Ko RDFIERNE AR S KW
the basis of dividend received and receivable. HIEZVMBARIESE -
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required fisi % 2. 6B 28 Bt B 1 B B R AR B ER
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend fE Y 4R & U s 48 KB 098 7 B 7% R
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in KAKRERAERBRKIRER A
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of MU BRREEFE(BEESR)
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the WAREE - A ZERE R
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the BRAEHWBARREH#ETRE
investee’s net assets including goodwill. AIE, -
2.4 Segment reporting 24 SEHE
The chief operating decision maker is comprised of the executive FELERRABELRRBNT
directors of the Company and the senior executive management EERAEERREEE K&
of the Group. Operating segments are reported in a manner AHHERAXNBLETEELE
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief RREHANBRE—B - TES
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating BRRABEDRERRTMHLE
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. EOHKE - EAHBEERE
Information relating to segment assets and liabilities is not BERERWEREE - LTV BERZ
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the chief EERWIEERRFEELERR
operating decision-maker. AR °
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5
(a)

(b)

(c)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period; and

(ii) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESHHEBRE @)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 WYX KBERRE
Property, plant and equipment, other than those under REZEBRZIN W% BER
construction, are stated at historical cost less depreciation FAEDGIRIE £ K AR T 8 RO
and impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment under BEEIR - (EEERITRAR
construction for production or administrative purposes, or for IHMARREAECNEEDE B
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any B REBHSREAFEMD #ER
recognised impairment loss. Property, plant and equipment under BMEBRAR - EEWE - KE
construction is classified to the appropriate category of property, X AE Ty E e R AT VR B TE A iR
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. NAOBERME  MERRKENE
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property B 2EEENTEREE
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended AEAERTERRRRSG - 3R
use. i) L 7 L 4 49) 3 0K 7 ) ELE AR
EIB
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to B ABEREZSHEEE
the acquisition of the items. FEMERIRA -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount KRG 7 4178 B A8 8 #Y R SR AL A
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when mAlREMAREKRE - MIHB KA
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with BERI SEMIETE R - THE WEEAK
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be AAGHAEEREE  HEH
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is EBEATHERASBELEE - EM
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged RO HEREESHER IR -
to the profit or loss during the financial period in which they are HihrBERIERBEBRAREED
incurred. S EAR A E R R AR o
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using ME BERIENTERRE
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual RORR AT 8l 5T AT 6 PR 4F HA
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows: ERADEEZEHEBENE
Buildings 15 - 35 years BT 152 354
Plant and machinery 5-12 years R R e 28 58 12F
Motor vehicles 6 years E 64
Other machinery 4 -10 years H i 28 4Z 104
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and BEENEAERAERFERRE R
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. HHIRETRE - WRNEE RIE
R o
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its WEEREMESKEMGF A E
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than S5 AlEEREES AR HUR
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7). ZHAREEE(MEFE2.7)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the HH B L s K S 18 DA L R P 45 K
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within REHEMETE  WREREXAD
‘Other gains and losses’ in the profit or loss. [ B Moo e 5 18 | R TR o
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets, other than interest in
subsidiaries, as (i) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and (ii) loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss includes derivative financial instruments (note
2.10). Loan and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, including trade and other receivables (note 2.12),
pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits with maturity period over
three months and cash and cash equivalents (note 2.13).

The Group’s financial liabilities represent financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It
consists of trade and other payables (note 2.15), borrowing (note
2.16) and employee housing deposits.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more of the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

. it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; and

o significant change in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtors.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESTBEBE @)
2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 29 ZEREEMNRE#E)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is HERREUKERD S - BE
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount CHENEEROERERERERE
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding REBRFEAEIE 2 R RBE
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at nE(TBERELEZBREES
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying BI2REMERZZHEAE - &
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is EZREESRKHAERN  mEEe
recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest FANBRARER - WERRZE
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the BFIEE - FFEEMRAEEE
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As R EBARBEEAEEZE
a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the RERAE - ERATHREEZ
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market it AEEAMBAIBRZTS
price. BRRIAEZ AT EFERE -
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss MR EREME REEEZEE
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an R TR R R R SRR (B 1R B
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as ZE M (BIEB A 2 ERER%
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the Z)BREHE  AEBaAER
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or B2 Al B R Z R EEE -
loss.
If the recovery of trade debtors and bills receivables is considered %2 5 FE WK IR K e W 3 5 7 1
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful debts B RAFA MBS E
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group Bo - BilE s BB AR AL SR R BR AL
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered BEEE o fHAREE S U & #
irrecoverable is written off against trade and bills receivables B - WRA/T AU E K 2
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating SEERESBREFIREREE
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts WeE - MBHERNEZEREH
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against WeREH TR - EglE:RT
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account ERERATNRNEE  GRE
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off AR A B B o B AR A oA B
directly are recognised in profit and loss. REFEEBTIMEEMENS

BHEREHRER

2.10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 210 RAFEFABZNESRMEE
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair METARYVFRAFEFE -
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is REREHR HATFEGEHN
remeasured. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss TR MABEEBERNFER
depends on whether the derivatives are designated as hedging FHETARTEERHFRT
instruments, and if so, the nature of these items being hedged. B miEERHHAIA  AIETF
The derivatives which the Group entered into are classified as PR HmIEEMIE - REBET
held for trading financial instruments and any fair value change SHTET AR EABEEE
is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Assets in this category CRITE - MEMATFEZSHA
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within e F R - MABEREE
twelve months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current. EFEBER T ZEARNEE - 8l

DERRBDEE : BAISERKE
MBEE
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

2.13

2.15

2.16

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED FE

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amount of cash which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original
maturity of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing

Borrowing is recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowing is subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or
loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest
method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESTBEBE @)

2.16 Borrowing (Continued) 2,16 fEFR(#&)
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as WAl Bt B RMHBHK 2 HRE
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that =3 E R E A 2 T ) B A R R
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee BRERNRIERA - LLIBER
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no T BRAREEEFIERRAIL -
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be IR A FERFZAR GRS
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity HEHMME - MZERBIEER
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it FmnB & & REOTENKE -
relates. G RNV E R 5y o
Borrowing is classified as current liability unless the Group has an BRIEAR B AR E IR S ERE
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least HEEHEEEREMEREED
twelve months after the end of the reporting period. TZEA - BRIEREEAR

aff-

2.17 Borrowing costs 217 fBRHEA
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the g EEREEERKHE
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which ERERBSIHERNNEEME
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to B IEAG B9 — MR R R R A R -
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of EMAZEEENKEAN  BEE
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready ZEEEEABBAERERE
for their intended use or sale. HHERIE °
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of RIS BEREEB AR KRS
specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets ARIEFRRERE  EREMB
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. WAEREERBIEERNER

BRARAR AR

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the Fii A H b f& 5K AN 12 B8 AR BRI 0
period in which they are incurred. AR o

2.18 Current and deferred tax 218 EHRELHRE
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred AHHFIESZ HBEE AR
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that TR - BIAEEm R - BHEE
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or H fth 47 & U 53 ok B 1 1 1 2 B R
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other WIEBBBEEARI - FELLIBER
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. T - BRIETN S BIE H th 4R & Wz

SEBERRER -

(a) Current income tax (a) EHpEH
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the EHIF B B IR R A A 7 & b
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting JB D RS R e A R T UK
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate AFTERI B R & R E B
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates HEE B R MBI E
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which H-UREG2RENEETER
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes Al - B2 EE BRI MR TR
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to W% NRABEESERNTE
be paid to the tax authorities. HA 78 1) 54 75 0 R <2 A O B R AR
e fE o
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED FE

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESTBEBE @)

2.19 Employee benefits 219 EEHEA

(a)  Pension obligations (a) RBUESEMF
The Group sponsors defined contributions pension plans in the AEERPEARLMBE( F
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. A defined Bl ) MBS R E K -
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays REHKERAREMBLE
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal BT EEEKARKEE -
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund WEELARREERNZEESR
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits X EE B soR 1 BIRE B RS
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. ARKERN - AIAKEIMERE
Contributions made to the defined contributions pension plans jzﬁ RATERIMEK o Fﬂﬁm
are expenses as incurred. Prepaid contributions are recognised HEFR A S 5 BIVE L 2 R
as asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future o 32 8 o FRAT A ﬁtﬁb%ﬁfﬁi—f
payment is available. 3R 18] B B8 AT 008 R 2R AN BB R R

(b)  Bonus entitlements (b)  TEAL
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability FEHA ST (5 A FE AT TH PO AN 5% (B 78
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ERE R B A e (AR TS M 2 4 F) 3R
as a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable BEAESMEEMERLT  XHEAS
estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan BEHARETNERRERR
are expected to be settled within twelve months and are measured RfE - AL B R BRI
at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled. ToEAREE  TREEEM

REME NS RETE

(c) Share-based compensation (c) KRG HIHB
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation AREE R —RIZBEH - A
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in Bty REEE RIS - AEE
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an 152 o 8 P T R4S 2 1B B AR 75
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period MAFEDERSER © BIE
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, BREAMNIHIBENZEZER
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for HEB R DT EmEE -« R
example, profitability and sales growth targets) and including AT RAEMIET 5 R BRI 2R
that of non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for Z(FumBEMNEDREERRR
employees to save). Non-market vesting conditions are included R) BEEEERBIGE(HlmE
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to KELIRHE) V& - FMERE
vest. At the reporting date, the entity revises its estimates of the REBERABBE T RE 2
number of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the RIS E 2 BRA - RBER
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit or B BEESERAEMGHRATT
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. FEZBREZHE - BHERR

EABFUNETZE  ARBREA
HERR - WIS IEIAERAE -

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction ERBRERTERS  BEZME

costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share FRERNBR TR EZEEZRS

premium when the options are exercised. PRA R G AR (EE) R
BER -
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED FE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivables for
goods supplied, stated net of returns and value added taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of (i) upstream products and (ii) fermented and downstream
products are recognised when a group entity has delivered goods
to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the goods, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the goods. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been shipped to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FTESTBEBE @)
2.22 Interest income 222 FEBKA
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. FBWAKAERR AR ©
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the i E R R K FIB LR RE - A
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated EEEHEEHERENTKRE &
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of ORI ANRERRETER
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest B ETRRIRE R - WAEE ST
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are REFERT B W= AR < BE
recognised using the original effective interest rate. ERKEBRIENFEWAEA
[REFRFERER
2.23 Leases 223 MHE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of A RER R B g K | ¥ B
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating HARBHHE  BREAKEHNR
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any g RBLEHE MARIE N
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or BREBEAG THEAESR) RER
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. SEIETR R BRI o
(a) The Group as lessee (a) AFEFEBERBEA
Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the RELEHENEMNES
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the REGECE@EBEEEE
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an @R o fEREI A&
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised &R 2 B R IR 2
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a REGAEHBER A
straight-line basis. SR o
(b) Land use rights (b) LHEFE
Land use rights are accounted for as prepaid leases T AREERTANEE
payments and amortised over the lease term on a straight- HARR - WIREREER
line basis. SR -
2.24 Government grants 2.24 BUFHH
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value BT B R Al & AR F S & W B
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 4 By K 1% 3 <F 4E FE [ 75 (R R s
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. RERTERER °
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised BEKA 2B ERE
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with N 7E 78 1% 5 7 B B 3%t B B AR B
the costs that they are intended to compensate. ZERAREAFENRE - RER
Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment By - BRE KRR EA BB
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and BN AER B B EIERETEW
are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the A WK EEEE E R TR A A
expected lives of the related assets. REGEF A ©
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as
intangible assets when all of the following criteria are fulfilled:

(a) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
asset are available; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised development costs are
recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its
useful life, not exceeding five years.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED R A 1R AR A PR AR
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3 Financial risk management 3 MR EE
3.1  Financial risk factors 31  HEEBREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets AEENFESRIABGERR
at fair value through profit and loss, trade and other receivables, FEFABRENEREE  BH
pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits with maturity period over REMBEYRNR BEEMBRTRE
three months, cash and cash equivalents, borrowing, trade and FoZEALLEREFER BE
other payables, and employee housing deposits. Details of these EBEeEEBY - X - BEH5RE
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The HWENAREIEERES - &
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies EemIAMNFBEEEAENNKN
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management AREezEem T ANMERER
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate % RORE 52 %5 B R B IBUSR AE T XX
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. Hit - BEEEQEEREEZS
R B A AR B K B 3F B U B e
(a) Market risk HERHE
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated (a) 5 R
in foreign currencies, hence, exposures to exchange rate (i) SMNE
fluctuations arise. Approximately 9% (2016: 6%) of the REEETHNETRHNU
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than SNEESTE - B L AFRIERE
the functional currency of the entities of the Group. KRB AR o REEL

9% (=2 — X F:6%)
RHEE D UASE TSR
RIS B 5T

1E o
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely R EE B ) BRI INE
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rate. FE o i) B B B 3B HLONE [
The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the REBEBEZEURT
transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises B REDRHUAARE
when future commercial translation or recognised assets HE o WMBREEE R K
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not EHRRBERBENIEE
the entity’s functional currency. The Group is exposed BB ERE -
to foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to United EEEEINERR - N&E
States Dollars (“US$") and Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"). EFXrZEGETRBTH
The management considers the foreign exchange SNERE - BEERARE
risk with respect to US$ and HK$ is not material as A3 T R A TTRIINE R B
the net exposure of the financial assets and liabilities WARER » RER/NZE
denominated in these currencies is insignificant. ERGHENEREERE

BEEFRERIMTRE

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions AEBHNEERABUR
arising from its operations primarily do not expose to EBRGEARTHEREKXN
material foreign exchange risk as the Group’s assets and HNERE - REARAEE
liabilities are primarily denominated in RMB. The Group NEERBEFEUAR
generates RMB from sales in the PRC to meet its liabilities HEHE - NREEFEBEF
denominated in RMB. The Group has not used any forward B HEEIRARE - A
contracts or currency borrowing to hedge its exposure as ERAARBHENE
the cost-benefit is considered not effective. & - ARRBEARBE=E T

= MAKEYENRE
MEMA R ERY
IR o
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1
(a)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED FE

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Corn kernel price risk

Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the product
of the Group and they are subject to price changes in
the commodity market. During the year, management did
not use any commodity futures to control the exposure
of the Group to price fluctuations of corn kernel. Instead,
purchases are made in bulk at the time when the market
price of corn kernel is considered as low.

Cornstarch price risk

Cornstarch is a major product of the Group and it is
subject to price changes in the commodity market. The
party which holding a put position of cornstarch futures
contract would not make any profit if the cornstarch
market is prosperity. In other words, short-selling
cornstarch futures contract during the price-up period
would unnecessary increase the exposure of price risk.
The management would use futures contract to control the
exposure of price risk when the market is extreme volatile
or in recession.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowing carried at variable rates, which exposes the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-
free government loan exposes the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The management considers the fair value
interest rate risk is insignificant as the government loan is
repayable within one year.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 KR EE (&)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1  BEERBEZEE)

(b)  Credit risk (b) EEREE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables AEBNEERBREEREE=
from third parties. Management has a credit policy in place and FEGRYGK - BEREEHIEIE
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing EBE - W e ERAERENGE
basis. ERmbg -
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the EEMNERIEPR  AEEE
creditability of each of the potential customer’s credit quality and AR EBEEEPNERERR
defines credit limit to each customer. In order to minimise the BREFPREEERE - RRE
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team BWEEERR  AEBENEEE
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals ERR—HEABEBEETEEER
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action B EEMZREMEERT
is taken to recover overdue debts. In determining whether e 4R B ERER BR A 17 B DA 57 (= 280 A7
allowance for bad and doubtful debts is required, the Group RiE- ERERBARRERE
takes into consideration of the aging status and the likelihood HEEE - AEESERRERIRK
of collection. Following the identification of doubtful debts, the SR EEIBA A M o WEE
responsible sales personnel discuss with the relevant customers BEBRRE  CHOZEHEAR
and report on the recoverability, specific allowance is only made SHEAEFEN - SEENA
for trade receivable that is unlikely to be collected. In this regards, SEMEZ®R MERE/TA
the directors are satisfied that this risk is minimal and adequate BEU Bl B0 B 5 FE U AR AE I A T 4
allowance for doubtful debts, if any, has been made in the e ptins - EFHENZA
consolidated financial statements after assessing the collectability T &Y @B R - i B 7R AT A 3 B
of individual debts. BEIER AT B 2 B 1EE OB 7S

BERFAENREBECER) N
BFRE °

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in the PRC and bills AEEEEESGRYERPHIR
receivables is monitored closely by management of the Group TREFEAREREENEER
who will assess the reputation, the risk of recoverability and % W RS R R IR
the financial information, if any, of the counterparties before the Al e RT AR ¥ 5 05 2 - e & bR
placing of deposits or accepting the bills receivables. R HER (E) °
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in RESIREMERRHE @ A&
respect of the trade and other receivables, with exposures spread BrEsEETNEERRE  E
over a number of counterparties and customers. RPN ZZE T RER °

(c) Liquidity risk (c) THEELREE
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBSELEE  BHR&RR
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the CEBYMRBEEEERRTR
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash BIK T - PAREAT AN B ) A &
flows. In addition, the Group also maintains sufficient banking FELRERERERBNZE -
facilities to meet its future payment requirements. LEoh - REB IR AR B SR IRT

EEEMNERRNAMAE
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1
(c)

3.2

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED F

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity table

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows:

3

BB

3.1
(c)

EXE )

MHEREEE)
REBE L EE
TREMRNEENIETESHE
BEHERIEE - ZRENAKE
B T SR A R & R B B0 B
BEERMBEREREMEEL -
TRITBESHEEAATRUER
W& :

Between Between Total
Within 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flow
AERRE
—FHR —FEWF MEZLE HBARE mEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Group biN- |
2017 ZE-tF
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEMR 262,771 - - - 262,771
Borrowing EES 4,208 224 - - 4,432
Employee housing deposits BIRERES 23,768 - - - 23,768
290,747 224 - - 290,971
2016 —BRE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER T 314,524 = = = 314,524
Borrowing g% 3,322 886 224 = 4,432
Employee housing deposits 8IFERES 26,275 = = = 26,275
344,121 886 224 - 345,231
Capital management 3.2 ELXER

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce the
cost of capital. The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is determined by total
borrowing to total assets of the Group. During 2017, the Group’s
capital management strategy, which was unchanged from prior
year, was to maintain a lower level of gearing ratio in order to
cope with unexpected change in economic conditions.

MEBRBRAT]

AEBEREANERASRER
SERRKBELENRED  UAK
REHEEDRY SEMESREA
RHFE - BT HFAFBER
B AEETREARRARRX
Mok RAKRREDE
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BEESRA - AEERBER

e REREAREE - RIRLL R
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (Continued)
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirement.

3 BERRER#)

3.2

ERER
AARHEEANEQRHEEE
B EINPERHERER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ETFIT
Total borrowing BR4AE 4,432 4,432
Total assets BEMRE 3,538,106 2,904,392
BRI R 0.1% 0.2%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME

The financial instruments that are measured in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value are required to disclose
their valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any asset
measured at fair value. At 31 December 2016, the Group’s assets
measured at fair value are held for trading financial instruments
of approximately RMB19,000 which are measured using Level 1
method.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and
other receivables by assessing the recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. Allowances are applied to trade
and other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate
is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances
annually.

Valuation on inventories

The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods, work-
in-progress and raw materials primarily on the estimated future
selling price and market conditions. Where the estimates of the
net realisable value are less than expected, a material allowance
may arise. The Group reassesses these estimates annually.

Useful lives and estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will adjust the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to that of previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued) 4 EREFHEF R A %)

(c) Useful lives and estimated impairment of property, (c) ¥ BERRBWAEAEF
plant and equipment (Continued) R EFHRE (&)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of REBERRESHRTEDE -
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end of each WERZERSE FEMARED
reporting period. If such an indication exists, the recoverable R MEEBBAIR - AILARF
amount of property, plant and equipment is estimated using the BEREHERAE kKT8 EA
higher of its fair value less costs of disposals and its value-in-use. BEZERREGTYE  BER
If the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment exceeds BEZ MBS WE - K
its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised to B RFZENREESREAKE
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment - AlgHRAEBESEE
losses are recognised in the profit or loss. ZEHEREZEEAKESE B

PR EE RN B R -

5 Revenue and segments information 5 WA K2 &B&E #

The Group’s operating segments are as follows: AEBRZEDEMOT -

Upstream products - the manufacture and sale of cornstarch ENFER — S£ERBEEERBRHEE
and ancillary corn-refined products ORI T BIE R

Fermented and - the manufacture and sale of lysine, starch- PR — HEERHEBAE - BH

downstream products based sweetener, modified starch and T EE WE - SR REAE @
other products

The operating segments are identified in accordance with the economic KEDBHIBBERELE EOBURT

similarity and distinction of our products. For the purpose of assessing F2BEEHR - RAEDERE RN D EE

segment performance and allocating resources between segments, AERER  FELEERREAGHERER

the chief operating decision maker assesses and monitors the segment BRI 2RO I ELA D FWA - FERE

revenues, margins and results attributable to each reportable segment. 1B o HEBME S S M H A o IR KL

Inter-segment sales or provision of materials to other segments is not EEHEEA -

measured.

Interest income and expense are not included in the result for each FBWMARATHRAEBELESE I

operating segment as these are managed on a group basis and are not RAOMEAIMEDH - WAGFHAZLE

allocated to reportable segments. DEBHEER o

Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of certain government RAOMBRARRAZ DR EEBEREDE

grants and corporate costs respectively which cannot be allocated to ZERI S HHE T BT R EKAE -

individual segments.

Sales between segments are charged at cost or with reference to DEEHE DIRK ARSI B ERME=FHE

the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then AN EBRERNENMERE - [

prevailing market prices. The revenue from external parties reported EEERERINPMAR G EELERE G

to the management is measured in a manner consistent with that in the Bm R EMRE WS RAERE B -

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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5 Revenue and segments information (Continued) 5 WARDTER (#)

Fermented

and

Upstream downstream
products products Unallocated Total

BER
EHER THER ROE CEl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT AR®T T AR¥TT

2017 —E—+tHF

Sales to external customers RINREFHE 3,177,310 1,517,231 - 4,694,541

Inter-segment sales o EBfE S E 185,285 2,341 - 187,626

Reportable segment results Al FRE D EREA 278,433 389,454 - 667,887

Unallocated income RO EBA 30,897

Unallocated expenses RO (202,331)
Finance income BEUWA 32,424
Finance expenses BMEER (290)
Profit before income tax K PSRBT E 528,587
Other segment information: EfhHEE R

Depreciation and amortisation 378 & # 68,490 48,321 38,979 155,790
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5 Revenue and segments information (Continued) 5 KARDTHER (&)

Fermented

and

Upstream downstream
R

LHER  THES ROR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTLE ARETE ARETR

2016 —E-RE

Sales to external customers MINRE S 3,032,633 1,365,211 = 4,397,844
Inter-segment sales DEBEIHE 146,568 7,829 = 154,397
Reportable segment results Al IRE D EBELE 222,034 248,950 = 470,984
Unallocated income RABLUWA 12,373
Unallocated expenses KAORALX (190,701)
Finance income BEUWA 24,851
Finance expenses REEMR (1,862)
Profit before income tax BRET1S AT A 315,645
Other segment information: Hib D HMER

Depreciation and amortisation  #7% K # 57,206 45,966 43,221 146,393
Based on the place of the operation of external customers, revenue RIBIINR R LB  PEEEME
attributed to the PRC and other countries is RMB4,234,310,000 and KEEBWRAD R A AR 234,310,000
RMB460,231,000 (2016: RMB4,055,817,000 and RMB342,027,000) T & A R #460,231,000t( = T — /X
respectively. £ AR %4,055817,0007T & A R #

342,027,0007T) °
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6 Other gains and losses 6 Hihh B REE
2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Government grants (note) BT B (B aE) 98,499 5,212
Amortisation of government grants (note 24) B #HBhHY 5 (B 5E24) 13,484 1,889
Losses on disposal of property, HEYE - BEREEZER
plant and equipment (11,191) (1,354)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain B (E18) WESFE (1,374) 1,048
Net fair value loss on financial assets BATEFABENSREED
at fair value through profit or loss A EEEFE (337) (1,013)
Others Hi 6,787 6,776
105,868 12,558
Note: Bt e
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the government grants mainly represented HE_T—tFF+_A=+—HLFE ' BF#E
subsidies of approximately RMB97,046,000 provided by the local government for B = E4EH 5 BT A E S RS R B B AT
the compensation of losses incurred during the relocation of the old production E 4 9 65 98 T 42 4 /0 4 B 49 A R ¥ 97,046,000
plant in Shouguang. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the government grants ToBEZT-—R"EFT_A=+—HLFE 'K
mainly represented subsidies from local government for, inter alia, supporting T EZREM S B (HhaE) 3
the development of base-material infrastructure and the use of new and advance RER YRR R REAENRMARENE
technology. B o
The government grants were granted at the discretion of the government and were BUTHBN R BUR RIS R L - WEIEERE -

not recurring in nature.

7 Finance income 7 BE WA
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARBT T
Interest income on bank deposits IRITF AT WA 31,778 24,851
Interest income on investments TERFBHA 646 =
32,424 24,851
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Finance expenses 8

BMEER

2017
—2—tF

RMB’000
ARBT T

2016
= —RF
RMB’000

ARETTT

Interest on LATRIE B 8 F 8

- Bank borrowing — RITERK - 1,790

- Discounted bills receivables - FEWERIRE IR 290 72
290 1,862

Profit before income tax 9 BR P 1554 A

The major expenses of the Group are as follows: AEENEERAMT -

Cost of inventories recognised as RRAAZNFERAR
an expense

Employee benefits expense (including
directors’ emoluments) (note 11)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (note 14)

Research and development expenses (note) i3t & FIZEE B (M)

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TAfS TR E R A (FIE15)
(note 15)

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating lease in respect of premises

Auditor’s remuneration

EERNFS (B
=) (MFE11)
W B R EREITE (MR 14)

MELLHERTENNKERER

- Clikgl

2017
—F—tF

RMB’000

AR®BTR

3,902,009

167,320

150,903
20,610

4,887

1,079
721

2016
—T—RF
RMB’000
ARETIT
3,723,569

169,141

140,813
11,939

5,680

713
733

Note:

Research and development costs include staff costs of employees in the research
and development department, which are included in the employee benefits
expenses as disclosed above.
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10

10 Income tax expenses

FRrEBZH

2017
—E2—+tF

2016
—T—RF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
AR¥TT

Current income tax BERFT1S L

PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT”) PRI EEE ([1EMEH]) 166,728 79,086
Over-provision in prior years B FEBERE (476) (8,527)

PRC withholding tax A TR0
- dividend — & - 1,000
— others — Hfb 594 =
Deferred tax (note 22) IRERTE (MizE22) (32,320) 19,867
134,526 96,426

The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC
on EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years. During the year ended 31 December
2017, one of the subsidiaries in the PRC is recognised as high technology
enterprise and obtains a preferential EIT rate of 15%.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
entities’ profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong during
both years.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT and its Implementation Regulation, non-PRC
resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10% (unless reduced by
tax treaties/arrangements) on dividends receivable from PRC enterprises
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The Group adopted the 10%
withholding tax rate for PRC withholding tax purposes during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation as follows:

REBZEEEBRPEET - REF
EERECEMSHEAZZERLE BN
8 FEMBARRREFEZHESA
25% c RBZE=T—+F+=-A=+—H
IEFE - HP— B R B E A RE
BRASRMEE  WEHF15%NEER
EFERE -

HAAEENERNMEFEAL EES
BEERRRAE - RY\AFENGEH
fEHBHE -

BEFBECEMEREREERMR - &
FPEERGEBRKPEACEUN=ZTT)N
F—A—HEABRBRABEELORE &
10% BB R B FE N FY (B IERR ULt /e
ZHETARENTE) - REE_T—+tF
F_ZT—RE+-_A=+—BLHEE &
SEEHRBEBEMBERN 10% HENBH

2N 6 2 B 1A 32 AT B R B AT R R AR 40
T~

2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREF T
Profit before income tax B P15 5 A 7 528,587 315,645
Tax at the corporate income tax rate at 25% AZEFTISTHE 25%
(2016: 25%) TE—NE  25%) T EMFE 132,147 78,911
Tax effects of THERENRBZE
— Different tax rate — TR = (1,721) (555)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ~ — A HIFF 9,745 26,383
— Income not subject to tax — BERBA (4,660) (5,692)
— Tax losses for which no deferred tax — WAERERIEERIEE E
asset was recognised KR IR &R 482 398
— Ove-provision in prior years — BTFEBERE (476) (3,527)
— Tax deduction in the PRC — FEBIER % (2,085) (1,492)
- PRC dividend withholding tax — PEIRE AN 500 2,000
— Other withholding tax — EhFEIOE 594 =
134,526 96,426
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11  Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ 11 EEEINRX(BRESHE)

emoluments)
2017 2016
—®—tF —TxE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREFIT
Wages and salaries TERFS 113,312 107,291
Staff welfares BT&EH 36,854 35,266
Pension cost (note) RikeBA (M) 17,154 16,584
Total employee benefit expenses EERNAXEE 167,320 159,141

Note:

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in future years.

The Group has also sponsored various defined contribution plans for its employees
in the PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments based on certain percentage of the relevant employees’ monthly
salaries. The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group has no further constructive obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme which is managed
by an approved trustee registered under Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute a maximum of 5% of
each individual’s relevant income or a limited amount as prescribed by the MPF
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and independently administered.
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12

13

82

Earnings per share 12 BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners RABHEE ANEBIEEBRERBRTIRIAT
of the Company is based on the following data: HBATHE -

Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of AREER AEGEFE
the Company (RMB’000) (AR¥EFIT) 388,167 213,682
Weighted average number of EEITERRMNETSE (TR
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 5,995,892 5,995,892
The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 BHRBE-_FT—+tFR_F—"F+=-A
December 2017 and 2016 were the same because there was no dilutive St RIEFEORARTRANEEE
potential ordinary share. B WERERNREFRTIER o
Dividends 13 KE
Dividend payable to shareholders attributable to the previous financial BIEFE RS - RAF ALY T )
year, approved and paid during the year: FEAT AR AR, -
2017 2016
—E=—tHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
2016: final dividend of HK0.75 cents ZERF - REKREER0.75%4
per share (2015: nil) (ZE—hF: F) 39,340 -
Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the directors proposed a final RZEBE—tF+-A=+—H% EF&
dividend of HK1.20 cents (2016: HKO0.75 cents) per share, amounting to FRERAREFR1208W(ZE—R
HK$71,951,000 (2016: HK$44,969,000). The final dividend proposed after F :0.75%8(L) - £FE71,951,000(=F
the end of the reporting period is subject to approval by shareholders in — 7N 1 44,969,00087T) c R_T—+
forthcoming general meeting and has not been recognised as a liability F+ZA=+—8  RBEHREBEEZRIR
as at 31 December 2017. BEHRAREBASFRENEERREAS £

HAER  HEEE  BEXRERBEE -
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14  Property, plant and equipment 14 P BERRE

ELEN
equipment
ELEN Motor Other under
Buildings machinery vehicles machinery construction Total

EEBE
BF HBEREESH bat:d Hitogss SE CH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETRH

Year ended BE-Z-X%

31 December 2016 TZA=T-ALEE
Net book value at RZZ—~E—A—8i

1 January 2016 EEFE 280,666 546,343 7,641 14,764 495,228 1,344,642
Additions NE 323 2,340 1,475 2,036 26,645 32,819
Transfers upon completion 725k 885 155,521 261,482 3,760 52,187 (472,950) -
Disposals/written-off HE s (3,314) (2,761) (152) (24) = (6,251)
Depreciation charge for ~ FENEER

the year (28,181) (98,099) (3,673) (10,860) - (140,813)
Net book value at RZZ-"F+ZR=1+—A

31 December 2016 REREFE 405,015 709,305 9,051 58,103 48,923 1,230,397

At 31 December 2016 R-Z-xF+=A=+-H

and 1 January 2017 E=Z-tF-A-R
Cost PR 560,427 1,279,161 21,453 115,883 48,923 2,025,847
Accumulated depreciation 23T H1E MIRE

and impairment (155,412)  (569,856) (12,402) (57,780) - (795,450)
Net book value REFE 405,015 709,305 9,051 58,103 48,923 1,230,397
Year ended BE-Z-t%

31 December 2017 TZA=+-HLEE
Net book value at RZE—tE—HA—B/

1 January 2017 EmFE 405,015 709,305 9,051 58,103 48,923 1,230,397
Additions NE 1,138 11,354 1,002 1,373 54,398 69,265
Transfers upon completion  Fefk B 82 3 979 37,032 = 2,847 (40,858) =
Disposals/written-off HE/HMsH (1,378) (12,998) (723) (1,811) = (16,910)
Depreciation charge for ~ FEHNEEBH

the year (14,164)  (121,917) (3,149) (11,673) - (150,903)
Net book value at RZE—+F+=A=1+—A

31 December 2017 REREF(E 391,590 622,776 6,181 48,839 62,463 1,131,849

At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=1—H

Cost KA 498,203 1,182,318 19,852 96,256 62,463 1,859,092
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HTE LRE

and impairment (106,613) (559,542) (13,671) (47,417) - (727,243)
Net book value REFE 391,590 622,776 6,181 48,839 62,463 1,131,849
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14

15

16

84

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not pledge any

building for securing banking facilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, additions of property,
plant and equipment included an amount of RMB1,503,000 (2017: nil)
transferred from deposits for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Prepaid lease payments

The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use right in the PRC
represent the prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
values are analysed as follows:

14

15

M - BERRE#E

RZE—tEFRZFE—A"F+ZA=1+—
B AEETEKFTCAEFIERRITIE
BmEA -

BHE-_T—RF+-A=+—HLEFE "
REWE BEIXBRIE-—Z28KED
¥ BERFEOHREFCHIENSBAR
#1,503,0007C (= E—+% : T) -

BAHEER
FEBERPEZAE L SR T I0ER

RN ERETR - BRENREFE
DT

2017 2016
—Z2—tHF T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ET T

Net book value BREFE
At 1 January IN—=F=E 210,474 215,688
Additions NE - 366
Amortisation charge for the year FREHEER (4,887) (5,580)
At 31 December 7 e e [l =1 205,587 210,474
Cost R 238,562 238,562
Accumulated amortisation RETHEY (32,975) (28,088)
Net book value at 31 December R+ A=+—HNEmHE 205,587 210,474

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not pledge any
prepaid lease payment for securing bank facilities.

Other asset

The amount represented the advance payment to the Municipal
Government of Shouguang for the acquisition of land use right located
in Shouguang. The amount was settled in cash during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED MIERRA R AT
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17  Inventories 17 ®E&
2017 2016
—E—tF T— R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Raw materials R 149,685 132,860
Work in progress ERm 11,076 24,859
Finished goods BIRK 63,771 56,166
224,532 213,885
18 Trade and other receivables 18 EZRHEMEWRR
2017 2016
—=E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Trade receivables (a) Z 5 UK (a) 135,346 147,678
Less: Provision for impairment of B B S EMEORE R (b)
trade receivables (b) (9,630) (9,630)
125,716 138,048
Bank acceptance bills (c) RITHEN TR () 169,090 145,995
Others Hph 2,249 24,222
Loans and receivables E R R FEUGR 297,055 308,265
Prepayment to non-controlling interest TE eI AR i 2 K 1A
(note 29(iii)) (Bt =E 29(iii)) 44,600 =
Prepayments and other tax receivables TE A5 R R L A P LU A T8 68,037 28,280
409,692 336,545
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are mainly B RHMBKFNEEEEEAARK
denominated in RMB. 5T -
Prepayment to non-controlling interest represented a payment made to TE T FEIE IR 2 R IB IR R ER B 1R RE E W Bt
Linging Deneng Bio Technology Limited (“Deneng Bio Technology”) for RARAT (B AR ) I AREE
the purchase of electricity and steam in subsequent year. As Deneng Bio BEEBEE N RFAHNIE - AREEE
Technology’s power plant has ceased operation since 23 December 2017 EYB RN EERETBNERTES
upon the request of the local government, the prepayment is required to E—+ETAZT=HEBRILEE -
refund accordingly. The prepayment is fully refunded by cash subsequent MR R IR AR e AR AR o TR RIE R R
to the end of reporting period. HEHREE BEBURE -
Included in trade and other receivable is an amount due from non- B 5 I H At W B 95 U SR 45 IR AR SR 4
controlling interest of RMB224,000 (2016: RMB8,221,000). Details of R IBARKE 224,0007T (ZF—RF : A
balances with related companies are set out in note 29(iii). No impairment R#8,221,0007T) » BENE &R F15
has been made for receivables from related companies. R B 5 29(ii) o JE Ui B i A B FRIA N A
RE -
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a)

86

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trade receivables
The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 120
days (2016: 0 to 120 days) to customers.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date
and net of provision for impairment of trade receivables presented
at the end of the reporting period is shown as follows:

18

ES REtEYR &)

(a)

EOY LN
ARE-RETELPHEENA
FE—B_tH(ZZ—XRE: &
E-AZTH)TE -

NTRRBEPREFIZESE
WHRREEZEARRNGESE
WO BB R HORRER D AT -

2017 2016

—E—tH T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT T

0 - 30 days R=-H 111,761 120,931
31 - 60 days ET—2RTE 6,992 10,295
61 - 90 days RIT—220 B 6,597 5,494
Over 90 days A SIS 366 1,328
125,716 138,048

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of RMB13,955,000
(2016: RMB17,117,000) that were past due but not impaired.
These related to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. Based on past experience,
the management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customer for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired is shown as follows:

RZT—tF+A=+—8"
B 5 Wk A R # 13,955,000 75
(ZZ—RF : AR¥ 17,117,000
7)) REFIHBEERE - ZEEH
BT B MR B S BB
BEEFEB - BREBEATLER B
BREEBARZEERIELRE
BE REAREEERIESEAX
2y MEBEKRNERABATE
B CE

I &SR E RN E 5 FE YR A
REBEAXLEBRELENEFE
B e

BRI HEY ERENE S EEK
HRRER DT

2017 2016
—E2—tF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

1 - 30 days —z=+8 6,992 10,295
31 - 60 days =+—=x+8 6,597 5,494
61 - 90 days AT—ZEATH 1 705
Over 90 days A+BE 365 623
13,955 17,117
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 18

(b) Provision for impairment of trade receivables
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of RMB9,630,000
(2016: RMB9,630,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The
individually impaired receivables past due for over twelve months
were related to a customer, which had financial difficulty.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

(c) Bank acceptance bills

BEZ R HMEWRR &)
(b) EZERXEERE

RZFT—tF+—A=+—8"
AR#9,630,00070(=ZZ — /<% :
AR#9,630,0007T) K& 5 IR
RERELEEEEE - ERE
BEMNEERXEaE+ @A
TE—-FZHRMBRRENET A
Eg °

W& BHMARN RS EERR
ALl EERUGRHRREE - A%
B3 A R R o

(c)

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFIT

Endorsed bills EEZE 117,631 127,413
Bills on hand FoEZIE 51,459 18,582
169,090 145,995

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period of
180 days (2016: 180 days). There is no recent history of default
on bank acceptance bills.

As at 31 December 2017, bank acceptance bills of RMB2,000,000
(2016: RMB2,624,000) were pledged to banks for securing bill
payables.
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19

20

88

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Held for trading:
— Futures contracts

FEEER -
-HMEE4

19

BATEFABZNEHEE

AR¥TT

2017
—E2—+tF

2016
=N
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000

- 19

As at 31 December 2016, the notional principal amount of the outstanding
cornstarch futures contracts was approximately RMB20,826,000.

Pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other cash flow information

(a)

(b)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits and cash and
cash equipments

20

R=ZF

=RNET=LFET—FE ° 5T

ERBHANNBERASRNABARYE
20,826,000 7T °

SEMRITER -

EHEFER BE

RESZEYREMRERER

(a)

SHEMBITER
RERAEEEY

ERMERR

2017 2016

—=—tF —T—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREF T

Pledged bank deposits BIRFIBITER 3,000 1,063

Fixed deposits TE BT 3R 390,000 390,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEZFED

— Cash at bank and on hand ~RITRFERE 1,103,160 493,810

Total et 1,496,160 884,873

The bank balances are deposited with credit worthy banks with no
recent history of defaults. The carrying amounts of fixed deposits
approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2017, deposits of RMB1,492,449,000
(2016: RMB875,317,000) were placed with banks in the PRC.
Remittance of such funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the pledged bank deposits were
pledged to a bank for securing bills payable (note 25).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change of
opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from financing
activities.
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LLFE BEZHMELREAD
BV M AR AR R o
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21  Share capital 21 RAX
Number of Share
shares capital
RHEEE B2
‘000 HK$'000
T 1% FAT
Authorised ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HFREE0.1048 T2 Bk
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 RZZE—RER
= —phE = E=r—[8 10,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
shares Share capital
RBEE [N
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
& FHExT ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: LR BEITRARE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HFRREE0.108 L2 LMk

At 1 January, 31 December 2016 and 2017 R=_ZT— X F—H—AQ8
ZE-RERZE—LHF

+=—A=+—8H 5,995,892 599,589 532,656
22  Deferred taxation 22 EEWHE
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (a) CEIANELHEEERES:
The components and movement of net deferred tax assets are as BB HEEFEMNAKE D R
follows: EHT :

Depreciation
Impairment allowances PRC
of property, in excess dividend
plant and Government  of the related withholding

equipment grants depreciation tax Total

VENY BiHRRAE HERS

RRfERE BB HiTER A R EH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTF

Deferred tax arising from: REATEIRMELEHE -
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-r"F-A-R 26,236 - - - 26,236
Charged to profit or loss (note 10) ~ FAE%H1% (K 10) (18,867) = = (1,000) (19,867)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-A~E+ZA=1-H

and 1 January 2017 R-E—+%-f-H 7,369 = 5 (1,000) 6,369
(Charged)/credited to profit

or loss (note 10) B (0%) /4 A (B 10) (5,224) 46,382 (8,338) (500) 32,320
At 31 December 2017 R-Z2—+%+-B=1-H 2,145 46,382 (8,338) (1,500) 38,689
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22

90

Deferred taxation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(Continued)

The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position is as follows:

22

IERER I (44)

(a) CRANEZEHREEREE:
(%)
K& BRI B ARR R M IER R
BREE/(AF)WOT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIBEE 48,527 7,369
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEA & (9,838) (1,000)
38,689 6,369
Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERNWELHREBEEE
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of RMB3,555,000 AN 52 [ 30 4 L AT 4 OR AE AR
(2016: RMB3,073,000) in respect of losses amounting to HARERBWRAREBARE
RMB21,550,000 (2016: RMB18,627,000) that can be carried 21,550,000 c( Z T —/KF: A
forward indefinitely against future taxable income. The tax effect R # 18,627,000 7T ) T 7R i T Bt
on such tax losses has not been recognised as it is not probable IHEE ARK3,555000 (=%
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised —"F: AR#¥3,073,0007T) °
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. HRERBERG R AR REE
AJ A I % AT LA 85 B 1R 0 R 2R B
RBAE - M EERE RS
BEOBBZE -
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) AERNELHREEE

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC dividend withholding
tax relating to certain undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by the management as at the end of the reporting
period, it was determined that the undistributed profits of
RMB1,548,333,000 (2016: RMB1,199,457,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

MEBRBRAT

AR AR B E A B E A A
BORR S BUR - AR A 5t B R S
BRRETARD IR EEREGP
BEREENHERELEHES
B RIEERBRREHRMIE
HHFE ERAEEARAPE
MBARKNKRSERFNBARE
1,548,333,0007L( =& — /N F :
AR #1,199,457,0007T) N & i
A A RAEE DK ©
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23

24

Borrowing

Government loan, unsecured

B ERR - EEAF

23

(it =k
B TA

2017
—2—tF

RMB’000
ARBT T

2016

= —RF
RMB’000
ARETTT

— Within 1 year -—%FR 4,208 3,322
- Between 1 and 2 years - —FEWME 224 886
- Between 2 and 5 years -MEEREF - 224
Financial liabilities measured REEKATTENSRAE
at amortised cost 4,432 4,432
Less: Amount due within one year B EREBBEET
shown under current Liabilities —FREENEE (4,208) (3,322)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 224 1,110

The government loan was non-interest bearing. Government loan
represented government assistance provided to a subsidiary of the
Group. The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing is denominated in

RMB.

Deferred income

RMB’000
ARBF

24

BRERARE - BIFERERMTAE
B — R FT N R BB & BY o ARSI fE 3R

MRREEAARKEHE -

IEFE WA

At 1 January 2016 R=—ZF—X F—HA—H 35,432
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEHEE(ME6) (1,889)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—RFE+=ZA=+—H

;kE=Z2—+F—H—H 33,543
Additions for the year FENE 200,124
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEEH (MisEe) (13,484)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H 220,183

Deferred income mainly represent government grants received from
Shouguang City Finance Bureau and Linging City Finance Bureau for
the development of the production facilities in Shouguang and Linging

respectively.

BEBATERANS ARG EEREE
R D BB FE TR BB KRB TR
PRSI FEE)

—z-—tfe® 9]
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25

92

Trade and other payables

E5 REENR

2017 2016
—Z2—tHF T — N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Trade payables = ANEN 139,182 170,244
Bills payables R EE 5,000 3,687
Total trade and bills payables B RNARENZIRERE 144,182 173,931
Payable for construction and equipment BERBZBERMNR 46,705 88,076
Deposits A 25,343 12,015
Accrued expenses EFrER 19,077 16,864
Payroll and welfare payables e REF 17,590 15,846
Sales commission HEMT 2,757 2,347
Others HAth 7,117 5,445
Financial liabilities measured REBERATENSRAE
at amortised cost 262,771 314,524
Advances from customers KPR 157,355 162,376
Other tax payables H b iR IE 24,434 19,339
444,560 496,239

Included in trade and bills payables is an amount due to non-controlling
interests of RMB41,000 (2016: RMB63,618,000) as set out in note 29(iii).

As at 31 December 2017, bills payables are secured by bank acceptance
bills of RMB2,000,000 (2016: RMB2,624,000) (note 18(c)) and pledged
bank deposits of RMB3,000,000 (2016: RMB1,063,000) (note 20).

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

MEBRBRAT

B S EMNR R EN ZER R IER IR R
HERHIEARE 41,000 T(ZE—RF : A
R#¥63,618,000 7T ) (BiE 29(ii) #H5) °

R-ZE—t&E+-A=1+—8  ENEE
2 BIAA R 2,000,000 7 (=T — /K4 -
AR 2,624,0007T) (FFEE18(c)) AERTT
AL EE R AR 3,000,000 (ZF—X
F: AR¥1,063,0007T) (FfsE20) E
HARRITIF R AMEIE A -
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26

Trade and other payables (Continued)

The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables
based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

25

ESREMENR@E

T ABHRERREZRAARENZEIR
EERAMNRR O

2017 2016

—E—+tF T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARBTT

0 - 60 days TEN1+H 78,810 90,474
61— 90 days NI—BNTE 24,019 35,563
Over 90 days NTBHRE 41,353 47,894
144,182 173,931

The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2016: 80 days). The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit time frame.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly
denominated in RMB.

Employee housing deposits
Employee housing deposits are carried at amortised cost.

The Group offers residential accommodation to the staff with the aim of
promoting long service with the Group. Staff are required to place housing
deposits to the Group for the use of such accommodation. The employee
housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and repayable upon the
return of the staff quarters by the employee or termination of employment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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REBOTHEEHR/NTR(ZZ—XRF:
N+ R) - AEBEE I E %R R ERK
R ERAAEERNFNREBEERNE
EEANE

B 5 REMENROEEETIEUARY
sHE -

BETIRRERES
ETREREBESRBMERAIIE -
AEEMAETREEE  §ESETER
REOREAEE - BTEREBERDE
BAAEBSNERERES - BTIEER

BEHRE  BERIREIREETHE
ERRILERR (ABRRERE)RE -
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27 Commitments 27  EiE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHEERE
The group leases various office premises under non-cancellable REBIRBTTHESCEHENR
operating leases expiring within one to three years. On renewal, REZERAEYE  HER—Z
the terms of the leases are renegotiated. The future aggregate ZERER REHER - @8
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases REEE - REBET AL EHE
are as follows: ERRRFEBSAREENT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
No later than 1 year —FR 699 695
Later than 1 year and —FEREEN
no later than 5 years 418 935
1,117 1,630
(b) Capital commitments (b) ERBEZRAIE
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for at the end of RAFEERSCINEREE
the year is as follows: HMEARZINT :
2017 2016
—E—tHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
— Property, plant and equipment mE - BB KR 129,736 =
28 Share-based payment transactions 28 LIROXFARENRS

The Company’s share option scheme adopted on 5 September 2007 was
expired on 4 September 2017. The Company therefore adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 19 May 2017
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to directors, employees
and other eligible persons. The New Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the date on which the New
Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of issued capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no options have been granted under
both share option schemes of the Company.

94

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED MIERRE R AR]

ARBRZZTTLFENA A RBRMADER
EFER T —+tFNANABER - A2
AIAUR =T —tFAA TN BERAFTE
ARIEETEI ([FE R MERT &) - B ARE
2 EEREMEERATIRERE SR
Bh o FTEEIRAE ST B R IR AE S IR AR
Z AR +EANBR - AITEREINER
TEEE B R AN A AR AN A 7] 2 Ath B AR AR T
@ FTA B B W AR 1T 5 BB AR AR T AT Ak
BITHRMEE LR - & RHTEBAERA
AT B BEITIRAR 30% ©

RZE—+tFR_ZF—RNF+=-_A=+—
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29 Related party transactions 29
During the year, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions.

BELTXS

MAFE  AEEBFZ THIERNEER
5 e

(i) Transactions with related parties (i) BREERETZIRS
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Purchase of electricity and steam BIFERRRERBEEHFEA
from non-controlling interests 140,385 120,005
These transactions are conducted in accordance with their ZERSGNRBESENENE
respective contract prices. FEHETT ©
(i) Key management compensation (i) FEEEENRMN
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Short-term benefits X HIE A 1,750 948
Retirement benefit scheme RIKAEFIFT B3R
contributions 146 132
1,896 1,080
(iii)  Balances with a related party (i) EERAE S MAER

Prepayment to non-controlling T FE42E AR AR SR 25 O FIE

2017
—2—tF

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AR¥ETFIT

RMB’000
AR®T T

interest (note 18) (FIzE18) 44,600 =
Amount due from non-controlling R LSz 42 A A% 54 2 ) FRTE

interests (note 18)(note (a)) (FF=E18) (Fif7E (a)) 224 8,221
Amount due to non-controlling JRE 1< 42 AR AR 54 25 O FRTE

interests (note b) (FizEb) (41) (63,618)
Notes: B E

(a)

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and shall be settled in
accordance with the respective credit terms.

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

(6)  EEBDAEER RER
BRESER -

SERARTDEER 28
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30 Statement of financial position of the Company 30 AATMEBBARR T
2017 2016
—E—tH T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARNERE 159,121 159,121
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NG BN 514,100 590,067
Prepayments SELDEAS 376 402
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEZED 443 393
514,919 590,862
Total assets EEHRE 674,040 749,983
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of EAREE AEGESR
the Company
Share capital &N 532,656 532,656
Reserves (note) e (M EE) 141,384 217,327
Total equity AR 674,040 749,983
Note:  Movement of the reserves of the Company MizE :  AABEEELED

Share Special Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total

[grpy] BRI A B f#E REtBE Hat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR% T AR%T AR% T AR%T

At 1 January 2016 WZT—X~"E—HF—8 137,424 108,651 16,730 (77,522) 185,283
Profit for the year FEFHE - - - 32,044 32,044
At 31 December 2016 RZ-Z—X F+-_A=+—H

and 1 January 2017 k=T—+F&—HF—8 137,424 108,651 16,730 (45,478) 217,327
Loss for the year FEBE (36,603) (36,603)
2016 final dividend —E—ARERARE (39,340) (39,340)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+&+-F=+—8H 98,084 108,651 16,730 (82,081) 141,384
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31 Benefits and interests of directors 31 EENEANRER
(A) Directors’ emoluments (A) EEMe
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BFEENHMEINWT

Employer’s
contribution to
a retirement
benefit

Salary scheme Total

BE@EREF
ik e HEELNMR A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T N S

2017 “E-t%
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Tian Qixiang HAEHLE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun SitEEE - 450 73 523
Mr. Liu Xianggang RMEAE - 410 73 483
Mr. Yu Yingquan FHEREAE - 410 - 410

Independent non-executive directors: BV TEE -

Professor Hua Qiang TERHE 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao FHREEE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERLE 95 - - 95
Total AFt 195 1,750 146 2,091
2016 —E-RF

Executive directors: HITEE :

Mr. Tian Qixiang HEEEE - 264 - 264
Mr. Gao Shijun BitrE L . 264 66 330
Mr. Liu Xianggang SR % & - 210 66 276
Mr. Yu Yingquan FRREE - 210 - 210

Independent non-executive directors:  BUHBITEE

Mr. Chen Zhijun BREERAE
(resigned on 17 May 2016) (R=F—1%F
AATHEHE) 19 - - 19
Professor Hua Qiang ERYE
(appointed on 17 May 2016) (R=F—R%F
AEATHAEEA) 31 - - 31
Mr. Sun Mingdao HRELE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REFELE 94 - - 94
Total CH 194 948 132 1,274
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no HE-_ZT—+tHER-_FT—F
emoluments have been paid by the Group as an inducement +TZA=+—BILFE XEEH
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of BEXNBME  ERRSIMAK
office. MAKREE R REN S IERKE

BRI H(E -
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31

32

98

Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the retirement
benefits paid to Mr. Gao Shijun and Mr. Liu Xianggang are related
to their services as a director of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four
(2016: three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis in note 31. The emoluments of the remaining one
(2016: two) individual was as follows:

31

32

ESNENRERS @)

(B) EEHRIKEF
TZA=E+—BLEEFE At
B RAERBIRM L LN ERIK
BT R EEERR R EME
AEEEREE -

REHFAL

RERRERSFALR  OE(ZFE—K
FZRB)RERFTNEE - RENWER
MBI DT 25 - BT —R(ZF—K
FMB)RSHFALHOMESOT

2017 2016

—E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
Salaries Fe 821 1,205
Contribution to a pension scheme FERR BT MK 16 31
837 1,236

The emoluments for each individual was within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no emoluments
have been paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED MIERRE R AR]

ZALTEBRB$ 71,000,000 TTAA ©

RBEZZ—+tFRER=ZT—X~"F+=A
=+—HILFE FAEERERNALEES
FATZAME - EARSIIMASKINAZK
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33 Subsidiaries 33 MKELF
As at 31 December 2017, the Company has the following interests in its RZZE—+F&+=A=+—H8 ' XRAAAH
subsidiaries The kind of legal entity of these subsidiaries is limited liability THRB AR R R - ZEMBRF
company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. VEEBRERAERAR - REHIH

SN FESA Z D 2 BRI A BB o

Proportion of ownership interests

PR Rk bl
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by
Name of company and business  Principal activities paid up share capital interest Company  a subsidiary
RN —-BHELF
LKL by TEEH BRORMERAFE A5EERER ADAfKE fik®
Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden PRC Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch, RMB480,000,000 100% - 100%
Com Development Co., Ltd* P lysine and related products AR 480,000,000
WRBRERETRRZARARA FERBETARY BARREBER
Shouguang Golden Far East Modified PRC Research, development, manufacture US$9,600,000 100% - 100%
Starch Company Limited* i and sale of modified starch and 9,600,000%7
SRERRENRNERLE related products

& AERBERERDRERER

Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio PRC Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch, RMB200,000,000 91% - 91%
Limited e starch-based sweetener and related AR 200,000,000
BAERS ERENERAR products
EERHETARY  BREREBHER
Shouguang Golden PRC Research, development, manufacture RMB200,000,000 55% - 55%
Corn Biotechnology Limited* e and sales of starch, food additives, AR 200,000,000
ERETKENREERAA feeds, amino acids and

related products
E - RE - AERHEERD -
ROANE - Ff - ERRERER

Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. BVI, Hong Kong  Investment holding US$240 100% 100% -
KEEERNE/ RERR 24057
China Starch Group Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100% -
FERNEERRAR & RERR 157
None of the above subsidiaries have non-controlling interests that are LB RARMEESHAKEN S BE
material to the Group. AR FEFERR RS ©
4 English transliteration is for identification only. y RGRBEHER o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 “E—tFFR 99




Five-Year Financial Summary
LEMBHE

Operating results FE

(RMB’000) (AR®TF )
Revenue WA 4,694,541 4,397,844 4,397,844 4,360,110 4,169,785
Gross profit EF 619,543 497,095 497,095 354,332 363,519
Opearting profits FEIbE 496,453 292,656 292,656 120,274 67,969
Profit for the year ARE E A E 394,061 219,219 219,219 101,913 66,345
Profit attributable to shareholders A% 5 f& & F1/ 388,167 213,682 213,682 98,877 62,725
Assets and Liabilities EERAE

(RMB’000) (AR®FT)
Total assets BEE 3,538,106 2,904,392 2,822,720 2,845,196 3,005,589
Total liabilities FEN=L 791,083 602,090 739,637 831,359 1,026,783
Non-controlling interests FEIERR AR R M e 131,520 35,626 30,089 27,053 23,433
Shareholder’s equity PR R = 2,615,503 2,266,676 2,052,994 1,986,784 RS 5583723
Per share data BREE
Net assets per share (RMB) ERFEE(ARE) 0.46 0.38 0.35 0.34 0.33
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SEF (ARED) 6.47 3.56 1.65 1.05 2.06
Dividends per share (HK$ cents) &&&E (&1l) 1.20 0.75 = 0.69 0.67
Dividend payout ratio KB & 15.0% 18.8% - 51.4% 25.7%
Share price as at the FRRE (BT)

year ended (HK$) 0.305 0.170 0.151 0.172 0.221
Note: Bt E
The above summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements. ERBETEREECRABRER L —HD
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Key Performance Indicators
TERRIFT

The following key performance indicators (“KPI”) does not form part of the WA TN EERBFEEIIFHEFRAHHBHRRO—ED
audited consolidated financial statements. The workplace and environmental 0 ° MB R T{EMEBURL REB T HZHZE -
data are not independently audited or verified.

The table set out below shows the major KPI in different aspects of the Group: TRERAEBEN TR ENEERRER -

FTERRER Units E{y
Financial B
Debtors turnover FEW AR A days X 23 26
Creditors turnover FEBRF R days K&k 14 17
Inventories turnover FER#E days X 20 20
Current ratio MENLL % times & 3.8 28
Quick ratio RE)LL times & 3.4 2.2
Gearing ratio® [EY Y % 0.1 0.2
Total shareholder return (“TSR”)° 4R R B R o % 83.8 12.6
Workplace T et B
Employee 3= number A £X 2,133 2,163
Staff turnover ratio® BImKERe % 71 7.0
Loss time injury BEAIRIEG
(“LTI”)¢ incidents ([BARIRIE] SR number =& 1 3
LTI rate® BAIRIHR rate th % 0.2 0.6
Training hours® Il o0 hours/month
K2, A
— General -—f 6.9 11.7
— Middle-level a8 10.9 17.9
— Senior - 5% 11.8 20.1
Notes: B EE
2 Gearing ratio is calculated as the borrowings to total assets. a AR R TIRE RBR A E ERERTH ©
® TSR combines share price appreciation and dividends paid to show total return to ~ © HRREHREEREARBREMARS AR
shareholders. RCRTE R AED R -
© Staff turnover represents the employees (permanent and temporary) leaving the c BT RARABREBBANES (RAKER)
Group voluntarily.
¢ LTI is an occupational injury sustained by an employee for which the employee ¢ BAIRIERESAIEMERSE B&EX
misses one or more scheduled workdays after the day of injury. LTI rate is the —RFALFEETERRIER - BRIBIER
number of LTI within a financial year relative to the total number of hours worked in RNEREEARNBR TR TE2E HERE—&
the same financial year. LTI rate is reported as the number of LTI per million hours BEENTIREHEZHE BRIKIEENUSG
worked. BEIRNNBATRHNE 2R -
e The average number of training hours per employee is calculated as the total ¢ A& B 1T 155530 BU IR A 30 48 15 31 B B R
internal training hours to different employee categories. AAREE B BREE ©
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Key Performance Indicators

T ERBIREZ

TERBRER

Units B

Environmental
Fresh water used
Fresh water consumption intensity'
Electricity used
Electricity consumption intensity’
Steam used
Steam consumption intensity’
Fuel used
— Diesel
— Unleaded petrol
Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions?

— Scope 1"
— Scope 2!
— Total GHG emission
GHG emission intensity*
Water discharged
— Waste water to recycled water
— Waste water to sewage network
Non-hazardous waste' produced
Packaging material used

B’
FrRARK
RIKHFERE'
FrAE

B ERERE
TRz
T HFERE
B Ak

RV
— AW A /‘L/Hﬂ

REREEEC

#E
#E 2
BER AR
REREIEGR R
KT E
- KB L RTEEREB AKX
- BFE SR AR RO BE K
EERIEEREY
PR B &Y

ERVPS N
index #§&k
GWh & R
index #5&k
tonne M#
index &k
litre AF+
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438 423

97 100
1,693,586 1,683,136
100 100
248,626 173,854
102,809 67,020
843 861
774,287 733,446
775,130 734,307
98 100
1,925,892 1,193,277
1,201,142 1,232,299
47,239 53,314
4,579 4,174

f Fresh water, electricity and steam consumption intensity indices are calculated as i
the intensity of fresh water, electricity and steam consumed per tonne of physical
product produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the 2016 base year

(set to 100).

9 The methodology used for the determination of emissions for the financial year 9
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2016 is based on various documents, such as 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National
Greenhouse Gas Inventories, and the 2015 Baseline Emission Factors for Regional
Power Grids in China issued by the Department of Climate Change and IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report.

Scope 1 emissions represent the emissions from combustion of fuels at stationary
sources to generate electricity, steam, or heat which are owned or controlled by the
Group and transportation emissions from owned or operated vehicles.

Scope 2 emissions are emissions from consumption of purchased electricity, steam
and heat.

Total GHG emissions are direct emissions, plus emissions from the net change of
purchasing and selling of electricity and steam.

GHG emission intensity index is calculated as the GHG emissions from physical
products produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the base year (set
to 100). The base year is reset from 2014 to 2016.

Non-hazardous wastes mainly represent sludge, saccharified residue, inactivated
bacteria residue and fertiliser.
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